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CHAIRMAN'’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

Over the past decade, it is fair to say that Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited (MBAPL) has
achieved its stated vision to become a truly one of the quality Fertilizer company. In the last two
to three years, as the global pandemic caused unprecedented disruption all over the world, we
proved the company’s resilience under the most testing conditions in the history, culminating in
a record financial performance in 2021-22. This achievement has given us greater confidence in
the value-creating potential of our people and processes.

The financial performance of MBAPL in fiscal 2022 reflects the outcome of continued volume
growth from existing key customer relationships, acquiring new customers across all verticals,
which together with the adoption of new Product Line DAP & NPK Complex fertilizer, resulted
in 184.08% growth in the Company Profit Before Taxation (PBT) and reported an all-time high
turnover of Rs. 491.48 Crore growing by 164.65 % over last Financial Year and similarly Profit
after tax at Rs. 57.02 Crore crores was up 181.69%. despite the challenges faced due to the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic impacting several industries across the globe. Our strategy, focused on
offering differentiated end-to-end services, supports long-term value creation for our
shareholders.

With the view of providing all type of fertilizers to the farmer under one roof and enrich to
product line, your Company has recently started manufacturing of its rich value-added products
DAP & NPK Complex fertilizer variants in Various regions of India with installed capacity of
120000 MTPA. The Financial Year 2024 would be full-fledged year of functioning of this new
project.

With the close of financial year 2021-22, the company has achieved new milestones. RBI
Accredited External rating agency has upgraded company’s credit rating from BBB+ to A-leading
to reduced risk weight for bankers and an achievement, the Company has been aiming for.

Recently, sensing acute shortage of raw material in India Ostwal Group under which your
company operates, enter into an agreement with Jordan Phosphate Mines Company (JPMC),
Jordan (A government undertaking) for purchase of main raw material Rock Phosphate. Under
the agreement, JPMC will supply 5-million-ton of Rock Phosphate for the next 10 years. Approx.
Rs. 500 Crore per annum in value of import of Rock Phosphate. This arrangement will ensure
uninterrupted production at all the production facilities of the group entities including your
Company.
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For the business year 2022, the Board of Directors recommending the dividend of Rs. 0.50 per
equity share. In addition, we expect attractive shareholder value generation opportunities in the
short- and medium-term from a value accretion perspective.

Your Company is constantly working towards inclusive growth in society through CSR. Through
its CSR programmes, Company is supporting sectors like health, education, skill development,
environment and empowerment of underprivileged sections of the society and Company is also
working on upliftment of farming community through various programmes. During the year,
numerous training programmes were organised to educate farmers about balanced use of
fertilizers, soil analysis, new farming technologies, methodology of application of different
fertilizers etc.

The philosophy of your Company on Corporate Governance is to ensure transparency,
disclosures and reporting that conforms fully with the laws and regulations of the country in
order to promote ethical conduct & practices throughout the organization for enhancing
stakeholder's value. Your Company is committed to comply with the provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Corporate Governance.

As we continue our eventful journey, I take this opportunity to thank and appreciate my
colleagues on the Board of Directors for their valuable contribution and support in running the
affairs of the Company. I also wish to express my thanks to the Auditors, Banks and Regulatory
Authorities for their guidance and support. I sincerely thank all our customers and business
associates for their continued support. I would also like to thank all our employees for their
commitment, hard work and contribution to the Company's performance.

With the trust and confidence shown by all of you, we are looking forward to continue our
journey in a manner that develops trust and enhances the long term value for all stakeholders.

Thank you,
Yours sincerely

Sd/-
Mahendra Kumar Ostwal
(Chairman)
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Established in 1997 Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited is one of the quality Fertilizer and
Chemical manufactures of India in private sector. The Company founded By Mr. Shailander Jain,
of Sagar but taken over by Ostwal Group in the month of September, 2004. At the time of taking
over, the company’s total production capacity was 60000 MT PA for SSP. Over the years, with
various expansion, backward/forward integration and also with diversification, made itself
immune to ups and downs of SSP industry.

We are manufacturing Beneficiated Rock Phosphate (BRP), Sulphuric Acid (SA), Single Super
Phosphate (SSP) and Phosphate Rich Organic Manure (Prom) which is used in large quantities for
replenishing “P” (Phosphorus) in the soil and act as a fertilizer for the crop. Company is also
engaged in production of Sulphur Bentonite and some value-added chemicals like oleum etc.
Sulphuric acid is a mother chemical for all chemicals. During the current FY 2021-22, we have
started manufacturing phosphoric Acid, DAP/NPK Complex Fertilizer and enhanced capacity in
manufacturing of Sulphuric Acid.

The installed capacity as at the end of March 2022 was 240000 TPY for SSP/GSSP, BRP crushing
capacity is 198000 TPY, Sulphur Bentonite 10000 TPY, Sulphuric Acid 33000 TPY & Oleum 9900
TPY. With Commencement of new DAP/NPK Complex Fertilizer plant in the first quarter of
FY22, we have added 66000 TPY of Sulphuric Acid, 120000 TPY of DAP / NPK Complex Fertilizer
and 49500 TPY of Phosphoric Acid.

BRP (Beneficiated Rock Phosphate)

With low grade rock phosphate, through the process of BRP, we produce high grade rock which
is mainly used for the production of single super phosphate & Phosphoric Acid which is the raw
material of Dia-ammonium phosphate (DAP).

SSP (Single Super Phosphate)

Single Super Phosphate is a fertilizer produced by treating beneficiated/high grade rock
Phosphate with Sulphuric Acid.

This process converts in soluble phosphates into forms more readily available to plants. The
product is a low-cost source of phosphorus and sulphur in a wide range of pasture situations. SSP
is a traditional product for supplying phosphorus and sulphur to pastures, these are the main two
nutrients required for pasture production. SSP helps in improving root growth and development
which is most important for uptake of plant nutrient and water.
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Granulated Single Super Phosphate

SSP is normally produced in powder form but to increase its ease of sprinkling in farms and also
to make it possible to feed SSP with sowing of seeds itself, demand of granulated SSP (GSSP) is
growing. We have capability to convert SSP into GSSP to the extent of 180000 TPY.

SA (Sulphuric Acid), Oleum 23%, Sulphur Bentonite

Sulphuric Acid and Oleum require Sulphur as raw material, which is easily available
indigenously. Sulphuric acid is used by us for production of SSP and sale in open market as well,
we supply Oleum to Indian ordinance factory which use it in manufacturing of explosives for
Indian Army, it also used by dyes intermediate and cellulose industry. We have Sulphur sources
near to our units at economic freight and competitive price.

Phosphoric Acid

Phosphoric acid, H3PO4, is produced from phosphate rock by thermal process. The reaction,
tiltration and concentration steps. The phosphate rock is grind and acidified with sulfuric acid in
the reactor vessel. The next step is the filtration where the solids are separated and washed and
the phosphoric acid is received. Finally, the acid is evaporated to obtain the commercial grade.

Diammonium phosphate /NPK Complex Fertilizer

Diammonium phosphate (DAP) is the world's most widely used phosphorus fertilizer. DAP
made from two common constituents in the fertilizer industry, and its relatively high nutrient
content and excellent physical properties make it a popular choice in farming and other
industries. It’s formulated in a controlled reaction of phosphoric acid with ammonia, where the
hot slurry is then cooled, granulated and sieved.

NPK Complex fertilizer is crop specific and can be customized as per soil requirements. This is
mainly used for oil crops, Soya. We are, at present manufacturing 20:20:0:13 NPK fertilizer
whose demand in our area of operations is good.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021
Revenue from operation 49148.95 18571.39
Depreciation 1812.96 937.20
Profit Before Tax 8117.87 2857.56
Profit After Tax 5702.04 2024.19
Other Comprehensive Income 3.19 -14.62
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 5705.23 2009.58

Financial Position

Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Tangible assets 15306.47 8513.89
(ii) Capital work-in-progress 249.82 7535.05
Non-Current Assets 235.64 140.60
Current Assets 28111.84 10251.57
Total Assets 43903.77 26441.11
Equity Share Capital 2190.67 2190.67
Reserves & Surplus (Other Equity) 18341.04 12745.34
Non-Current Liabilities 4775.27 4673.40
Current Liabilities 18596.79 6831.70
Total Sources 43903.77 26441.11
Profit Before Tax Margin (%) 16.52 15.39

Profit After Tax Margin (%) 11.60 10.90

EPS 26.03 9.24

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Profit before tax for the FY 2021-22 is Rs. 8117.87 Lakhs as against Rs 2857.56 Lakhs in previous
year recording a growth of 184.08%.

TAXATION
Your company’s total tax liability for the year is Rs. 2415.83 Lakhs including deferred tax liability of
Rs. 993.09 Lakhs.

PROFIT AFTER TAX

The profit after tax is Rs.5702.04 Lakhs in current year as compared to Rs. 2024.19 Lakhs in the
previous year showing a growth of 181.69 %.

EARNING BEFORE INTEREST, TAX & DEPRECIATION

Your company achieved healthy EBITD of Rs. 10684.81 Lakhs i.e. 21.74 % of Revenue from
operations. The EBITD of the previous year of Rs. 4174.89 Lakhs i.e. 22.48% of Revenue from
operations.
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Registered Office: 5-O-21, Basement,
R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara, 311001 Rajasthan
CIN: L24121R]J1997PLC029126
Tel. No.: 01482-237104 Fax No.: 01482-239638
Website: www.mbapl.com Email: secretarial@mbapl.com
NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 25th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited will be held on Monday, 26t day of September, 2022
at 03.30 P.M. through two-way Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means
(“OAVM”), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
and in this regard, pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid
before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares for the Financial Year 2021-22.

"RESOLVED THAT in terms of recommendation of Board of Directors of the company, the
approval of the members of the company be and is hereby granted for payment of dividend @
Rs. 0.50 per share (i.e. 5%) on the fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company
for the year 2021-2022.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sourabh Gupta (DIN: 07177647), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Sourabh Gupta (DIN: 07177647), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible
has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

4. To appoint new statutory Auditor namely M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates, Chartered
Accountants in place of outgoing statutory auditors namely M/S Rajneesh Kanther &
Associates, Chartered Accountants whose five year term expires with the conclusion of
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ensuing 25" AGM of the company by passing the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution with or without modifications: -

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the companies act,2013, if any, read with the companies ( Audit and Auditors/s
rules, 2014 ), including any statutory enactments or modifications thereto, M/s Ashok
Kanther & Associates, chartered accountants (Firm registration number 050014C) be and are
hereby appointed as the statutory Auditor of the company for a period of five years form the
financial year 2022-2023 to 2026-27 and to hold office from the conclusion of this 25t AGM of
the company till the conclusion of the 30th AGM of the company on such terms and conditions
and at a remuneration as may be fixed by the Board of directors from year to year in
consultation with the Auditors “ .

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To approve and ratify the authority of Board of directors in fixing remuneration of the Cost
Auditor(s) for the financial year ending 31st March 2023 and, in this regard, to consider and if
thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Shareholders hereby ratify the actions of the Board of Directors pursuant
to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, for approving recommendation of
Audit Committee for remuneration to M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Auditor(s) to
conduct the cost audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March 2023 at such
remuneration as shall be fix by the board of directors of the company.

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution to appoint Mr. Gopal Inani as an Independent Director:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, and approval of the Board and subject to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 161
and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and any rules made there
under read with Schedule IV to the Act, and the applicable provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force),
Mr. Gopal Inani, who was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director of
the Company by the Board of Directors w.e.f. July 29, 2022 and who holds office up to the date
of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive years
up to the conclusion of the 30t Annual General Meeting.

7. To approve the increase in authorized share capital of the company consider and, if thought
tit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following as an Ordinary Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61, 64 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification(s) and re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the rules framed thereunder, the consent
of the Member of the Company be and is hereby accorded to increase the Authorized Share
Capital of the Company from the present Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Crore only)
consisting of 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore fifty lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten) each to
Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crore only) consisting of 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore) Equity
Shares of Rs.10 /- (Rupees Ten) each by creation of additional 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore fifty
lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each ranking pari-passu in all respect with
existing Equity shares of the Company.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is
hereby altered by substituting the existing Clause V thereof by the following new Clause V as
under:

V. “The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crore
Only) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore) Equity Shares of the Face value of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten) each.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of

Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take necessary actions for,
submission of documents and papers with the concerned authorities to register and implement
the aforesaid amendment to the Memorandum of Association of the Company and to do all
such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary in this regard including authorizing any
person of the Company for this purpose.”

8. To approve issue of bonus shares and, in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass
with or without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to relevant provision of the Articles of Association and the
provisions of Section 63 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”) (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (“the
ICDR Regulations”), the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations” (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force) and other applicable regulations, rules and guidelines
issued by SEBI and the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) from time to time, and such approvals,
consents, permissions, conditions and sanctions as may be necessary from appropriate
authorities and subject to such terms and modifications, if any, as may be specified while
according such approvals and subject to acceptance of such conditions or modifications by the
Board of Directors, the consent of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded
for capitalization of a sum not exceeding of Rs.21,90,67,350/- (Rupees Twenty one Crore
Ninety Lakhs Sixty Seven Thousand Three Hundred Fifty only) from and out of Securities
Premium and/or Free Reserves and/or Retained Earnings as may be considered necessary, for
the purpose of issue of Bonus Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs.10/- (Rupee Ten only) each,
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credited as fully paid up Equity Shares to eligible Members of the Company in the proportion
of 1 (One) new fully paid up Equity Share of Face Value of Re. 10/- (Rupee Ten only) each for
every 1 (One) existing fully paid-up Equity Share of Face Value of Re. 10/- (Rupee Ten only)
each held by the Members of the Company, whose name will appear in the Register of
Members maintained by the Company / Beneficial Owners' Position as received from
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (CDSL) on the ‘Record Date’ to be determined by the Board for this purpose.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bonus Equity Shares so allotted shall rank pari-passu in all
respects with the fully Paid- Up Equity Shares of the Company as existing on the Record Date.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of fractional shares, if any, arising out of the issue and
allotment of the bonus equity shares, the Company shall not issue any shares or certificate in
respect of such fractional shares. All fractions of bonus equity shares shall be ignored if any,
arising out of the issue and allotment of the bonus equity shares, and no allotment is being
made for the fractional Equity Shares and accordingly the number of issuance of bonus share
may be reduced.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bonus Equity Shares so allotted shall always be subject to
the terms and conditions contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT no allotment letters shall be issued to the allottees of the bonus
equity shares and in the case of Members who hold equity shares or opt to receive equity
shares in dematerialized form, the bonus equity shares shall be credited to the respective
beneficiary accounts of the Members with their respective Depository Participant(s) and in the
case of Members who hold equity shares in physical form, the share certificate(s) in respect of
the bonus equity shares shall be dispatched, within such time as prescribed by law and the
relevant authorities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the issue and allotment of the Bonus Equity Shares to Non-
Resident Members, Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) and other Foreign Investors, shall be
subject to the applicable regulations under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 or
Reserve Bank of India or approval of any other appropriate regulatory / statutory authorities,
as may be necessary.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be
and are hereby severally authorized, to do all such acts, deeds, matters as may in their
absolute discretion deem necessary, desirable or expedient for giving effect to this Resolution.

10
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9. To approve material related party transactions and, in this regard, to consider and if thought
fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as amended from time to time, (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), Section 188 of the companies act
2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rules
made thereunder, other applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, (including any statutory
modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the
Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions, and subject to such approval(s), consent(s),
permission(s) as may be necessary from time to time on basis of approval, recommendation of
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, the approval of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to enter into various transaction with
related parties as defined under the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations
with respect to Sale, purchase or supply of goods or materials, leasing of property of any kind,
availing or rendering of any services, appointment of agent for purchase or sale of goods,
materials, services or property or appointment of such related party to any office or place of
profit in the company, or its subsidiary or associate company or any other transactions of
whatever nature with related parties in any financial year up to the maximum 500 Crore
(Rupees Five Hundred Crore Only) per annum as provided in the table in forming part of the
Explanatory statement, on such terms and conditions as may be agreed to by the Board of
Directors, provided however, that the said contracts/arrangements/ transactions shall be
carried out on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized to delegate all or any of the powers conferred on it to any Committee of Board of
Directors and/or Managing/Whole-time Director(s) of the Company and to do all such acts
and take all such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the
aforesaid resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter
referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respects.”

Dated: 23/08/2022 By Order of the Board of Directors
Place: Bhilwara For Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited
Sd/-
(Pallavi Sukhwal)

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

11
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NOTES: -

1. In view of the outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ((MCA ‘) has
vide its General Circular dated 5th May, 2022 read with circulars dated December 14, 2021,
January 13, 2021, April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 (collectively referred to as ‘"MCA
Circulars ‘) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("fAGM’) through Video
Conferencing (‘VC’) facility or other audio visual means (‘OAVM’), without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue. Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of
India ("SEBI’) vide its Circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021 and May 13t 2022 (‘SEBI
Circulars’) has also granted certain relaxations. In compliance with the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations ‘),
MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through
VC/OAVM on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 03.30 p.m. (IST). The registered office of the
Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM.

2. Further, pursuant to the MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the
Annual Report for FY 2021-22 is sent in electronic form only to those Members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. The Notice calling the 25t AGM has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.mbapl.com. The Notice can also be
accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. The National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (“NSE”) at www.nseindia.com and on the website of National Securities Depository
Limited (“NSDL”) (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

3. The explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
Business under Item No. 4 to 9 of the accompanying notice is annexed hereto.

4. In respect of Resolution at item no. 3 and 6 a statement giving additional information on
Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment is annexed herewith as required under SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Regulations).

5. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through
VC or OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in terms
of the above-mentioned MCA and SEBI circulars, the facility for appointment of proxies by the
Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are
not annexed to this Notice.

12
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6.

10.

11.

12.

13

Members attending the meeting through VC or OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act 2013.

Members seeking any information or clarification are requested to send in written queries to
the Company, in advance, before the date of the meeting by mail at secretarial@mbapl.com.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the AGM
through VC or OAVM or to vote through remote e-voting, pursuant to Sections 112 and 113 of
the Act, are requested to send a certified copy of the board resolution to the Scrutinizer by e-
mail at Sourabh.bapnal2@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in, authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order
of name will be entitled to vote.

The Notice is being sent to all the Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members/List of Beneficial Owners, received from National Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL)/ Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as on Friday, 19t August 2022 for
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the Depositories, for procuring user
id and password, Notice and Annual Report, are requested to provide their Mail Id at
secretarial@mbapl.com.

The Members are requested to note that the Company is pleased to provide a two-way Video
Conferencing Facility (VC) to view the live streaming of the proceedings of the AGM and
facilitate participation of Members at the AGM through VC or asking their questions through a
Chat box facility. The Members will be able to view the proceedings on NSDL'’s e-Voting
website www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Members may use this facility by using the same login credentials as provided for remote e-
Voting. Members on the day of the AGM will login through their user ID and password on e-
Voting website of NSDL. The link will be available in Member login where the EVEN of
Company will be displayed. On clicking this link, the Member will be able to view the
webcasting of the AGM proceedings. The VC Facility will be available on September 26, 2022
from 03:30 p.m. (IST) onwards till the conclusion of the Meeting.

. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes

after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The Members will be able to view the proceedings on NSDL’s e-
Voting website www.evoting.nsdl.com.The facility of participation at the AGM through
VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1,000 members on first come first served basis.
This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of
the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
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14.

15.

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction
on account of first come first served basis.

Dividend on Equity Shares, as recommended by the Board of Directors for the Year ended 31st
March, 2022 and subject to approval of members at this Annual General Meeting, will be paid
within thirty days from the date of declaration to those shareholders whose name shall appear
on the company’s register of Members on September 19, 2022.

The Shareholders, who have not claimed their Dividend in the past, are requested to write to
the Registrar and Transfer Agent, M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited, Mumbai to claim the
amount of Dividend.

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, if the Dividend Amount is not claimed
within 7 Years from the date it is due for payment, such unclaimed amount will be transferred
to Investor Education and Protection Fund and thereafter no claim shall become against the
Company.

Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of the
Shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020 and the Company is required to deduct Tax at Source (“TDS”)
from dividend paid to the Members at prescribed rates in the Income Tax Act, 1961 (‘the IT
Act’). In general, to enable compliance with TDS requirements, Members are requested to
complete and / or update their Residential Status, PAN, Category as per the IT Act with their
Depository Participants or in case shares are held in physical form, with the Company by
sending documents through email at secretarial@mbapl.com on or before September, 19, 2022.

Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not registered, or having invalid
PAN or Specified Person as defined under section 206AB of the Income-tax Act (“the Act”), the
tax will be deducted at a higher rate prescribed under section 206AA or 206AB of the Act, as
applicable.

A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can
submit a yearly declaration in Form No. 15G / 15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax
at source by e-mail to secretarial@mbapl.com. Non-resident shareholders [including Foreign
Institutional Investors (FllIs) / Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)] can avail beneficial rates
under tax treaty between India and their country of tax residence, subject to providing
necessary documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial Ownership Declaration,
Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which may be required to avail the
tax treaty benefits. For this purpose, the shareholder may submit the above documents (PDF /
JPG Format) by e-mail to secretarial@mbapl.com.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (vide circular nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21 and
April 29, 2011 respectively), has undertaken a ‘Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” and
allowed companies to share documents with its shareholders through an electronic mode.
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16.

17.

18.

Members are requested to support this green initiative by registering / updating their e-mail
addresses, in respect of shares held in dematerialized form with their respective Depository
Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with Bigshare Services Private
Limited.

Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes
pertaining to their bank details such as bank account number, name of the bank and branch
details, MICR code and IFSC code, mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of
address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc., to their depository participant
(DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s
records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents,
Bigshare Services Private Limited to provide efficient and better services. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to intimate such changes to Bigshare Services Private
Limited.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making
nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who
have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form
No. SH-13. If a Member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh
nomination, he/ she may submit the same in Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. Members
are requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by them in
dematerialized form and to Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, Bigshare Services
Private Limited in case the shares are held in physical form.

Voting Through Electronic Means: The details of the process and manner of e-voting are
explained herein below:

In compliance with Sections 108 and 110 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, the Company has provided the facility to the Members to exercise their votes
electronically and vote on all resolutions through the e-voting service facility arranged by
NSDL. The instructions for electronic voting are given in this Notice. The Members may cast
their votes using electronic voting systems from a place other than the venue of the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) (remote e-voting). The instructions for e-voting are given herein below.
The resolutions passed by the Members through e-voting are deemed to have been passed as if
they have been passed at AGM.

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the
AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period begins on 2374 September, 2022 (9:00 A.M.) and ends 25t September,
2022 (5:00 P.M.). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the
record date (cut-off date) i.e. 19th September, 2022, may cast their vote electronically. The voting
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right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of
the Company as on the cut-off date, being 19th September, 2022.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders |Login Method

Individual 1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please
Shareholders holding visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by
securities in demat typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either
mode with NSDL. on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of

e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
under “Login” which is available under “IDeAS” section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to
see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click
on options available against company name or e-Voting
service provider - NSDL and you will be re-directed to NSDL
e-Voting website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at
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https:/ /eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home
page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e.
your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page.
Click on options available against company name or e-Voting
service provider - NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned
below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

" App Store P Google Play

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with CDSL

. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can

login through their user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https:/ /web.cdslindia.com/myveasi/home/login or

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able

to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast
your vote.

. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register

is available at
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https:/ /web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra

tion

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate

the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
Shareholders (holding | through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
securities in demat e-Voting facility. Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
mode) login through [ Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
their depository NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
participants you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available against

company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders
holding  securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
demat mode with NSDL | helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
holding securities in helpdesk by sending a request at
demat mode with CDSL | helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or
022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.
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How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/ /www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member” section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https:/ /eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or | Your User ID is:
CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is
IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

account with CDSL.
For example if your Beneficiary ID is

12%Fxpnasssessx then your wuser ID is

12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login
and cast your vote.
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b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the “initial
password” which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you
need to enter the “initial password” and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your “initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial
password” is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file.
The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file
contains your ‘User ID” and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten
your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the
check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast yvour vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.
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2. Select “EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to
the Scrutinizer by e-mail to sourabh.bapnal2@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 and 1800-224-430 or send a request
at evoting@nsdl.co.in

Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after
the dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date, i.e., 19th September, 2022,
may obtain the User ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or
secretarial@mbapl.com. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting,
then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your
password, you may reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following Toll-free no. 1800-222-
990.
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions

set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
secretarial@mbapl.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or
16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement,
PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) to secretarial@mbapl.com If you are an Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode.

. Alternatively member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User

ID and Password by proving the details mentioned in Point (1) or (2) as the case may be.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

The instructions for members for e-voting on the day of the EGM/AGM are as under: -

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions
mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
system in the EGM/AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the
EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility
for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-
voting.
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Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through
the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of "VC/OAVM link"
placed under "Join General meeting" menu against company name. You are requested to click
on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be
available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please
note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting
instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through laptops for better experience. Further
Members will be required to use internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting. Members connecting from their mobile devices or tablets or through laptop connecting
via mobile hotspot may experience audio or video loss due to fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to attend the AGM
without any interruption.

Facility of joining the meeting shall be open 30 minutes before the time scheduled for the
meeting and shall be closed 15 minutes after such scheduled time and will be available on first
come first served basis.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number
at secretarial@mbapl.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

Other Instructions

The voting rights of shareholders (for voting through remote e-Voting before the AGM and
remote e-Voting during the AGM) shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, which is September 19, 2022. A person whose
name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained
by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-
voting as well as voting at the AGM.

Any person who is not a member as on the cutoff- date should treat this Notice for information
only.

The e-voting period commences on Friday, September 23, 2022 at 9.00 a.m. (IST) and ends
Sunday, September 25, 2022 at 5.00 p.m. (IST) during this period, shareholders of the Company,
holding shares in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date, i.e. September
19, 2022, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for
voting.
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4) Members who are registered with NSDL for e-voting can use their existing user Id and password
for casting their votes.

5) The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/
participate in the AGM through VC or OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

6) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after
dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is already registered
with NSDL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/ her existing User ID and password for
casting the vote.

7) Mr. Sourabh Bapna, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 51505 & CP No. 19968) has
been appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Board for providing facility to the Members of the
Company to scrutinize remote e-Voting process before the AGM as well as remote e-Voting
during the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

8) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to
be held, allow voting, by use of remote e-voting system for all those Members who are present
during the AGM through VC/OAVM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-
Voting facility.

9) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes
cast and make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized
by him in writing, who will acknowledge the receipt of the same and declare the result of the
voting forthwith.

10) The results will be declared within 48 hours of conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. The
results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.mbapl.com and on the website of NSDL: www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the
result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to The National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) where the shares of the Company are listed.

11) Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on
the date of AGM i.e. Monday, September 26, 2022.

12) Since the AGM will be held through VC or OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

Dated: 23/08/2022 By Order of the Board of Directors
Place: Bhilwara For Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited
Sd/-
(Pallavi Sukhwal)

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No. 4

M/s Rajneesh Kanther & Associates, Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company for a term of Five years till the conclusion of 25" Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Company and would retire at the conclusion of the said AGM.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, no listed Company can appoint or reappoint an Individual as auditor
for more than One terms of five consecutive years.

Accordingly, Pursuant to the aforesaid provision and Based on the recommendations of the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s Ashok Kanther &
Associates Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 050014C) are proposed to be
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period of 5 years, commencing
from the conclusion of 25t Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of 30t Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027.

M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates, a Firm registered with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India since 1989, Firm are primarily engaged in providing audit and related
assurance services to its clients in various industry segments.

The Board and the Audit Committee considered various parameters while recommending the
appointment of M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates as the Statutory Auditor of the Company
including but not limited to their capability to serve the Company, existing experience in the
Company’s business verticals and segments, clientele, technical knowledge, and found M/s
Ashok Kanther & Associates suited to provide audit services to the Company. Pursuant to the
provisions of Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates is eligible for appointment
for five consecutive years.

M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates, Chartered Accountants, has consented to the said
appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits
specified under Section 141 of the Act. They have further confirmed that they are not
disqualified to be appointed as Statutory Auditors in terms of the provisions of Sections 139
and 141 of the Act and the provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
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The proposed remuneration to be paid to M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates for audit services
for the financial year ending March 31, 2023, is 2.00 Lakhs (Rupees Two Lakh only) plus
applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses.

The Board of Directors, in consultation with the audit committee, may alter and vary the terms
and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as
may be mutually agreed with the statutory auditor.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or
interested (financially or otherwise) in this Resolution.

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of members.
Item No. 5

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost
Accountant, to conduct the cost audit of the Company for the financial year ending 31st
March, 2023. In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 14(a) (ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified by the Members of the Company. Accordingly,
consent of the Members is sought to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or
interested (financially or otherwise) in this Resolution.

The Board recommend the resolution for approval of members.
Item No. 6

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Gopal Inani as an Additional Director from 29th July
2022 pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. He holds office till conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting. His term of office is not liable to retire by rotation.

In accordance with Section 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV of the Companies” Act, 2013 the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and all other applicable provisions, that every
Listed Company is required that at least half of the board of directors shall comprise of
independent directors, so for giving the effect and make in line with the section Company has
appointed Mr. Gopal Inani, as an Independent Director on July 29, 2022, in accordance with
Section 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV of the Companies” Act, 2013, not liable to retire by
rotation and subject to the approval of members, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive
years up to the conclusion of 30th AGM of the company.
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The Company has received from Mr. Gopal Inani consent in writing to act as Director in Form
DIR-2 pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014; intimation in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment &
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that they are not disqualified in accordance
with sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and declaration that he meet the
criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

A brief profile of Mr. Gopal Inani, including nature of her expertise, is provided in the notice.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Gopal Inani fulfills the conditions for their appointment as
Independent Directors as specified in the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the Board,
recommends the passing of the Ordinary Resolution as set out in the Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, Except Mr. Gopal Inani,
being an appointee, are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) in this Resolution.

Item No. 7

In order to meet business requirement, it is required to raise further capital in the Company
and hence it is necessary to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company and also to
amend Capital Clause V of Memorandum of Association of the Company.

Present Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Crore
only) divided into, 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore fifty lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each. After the increased Authorized Capital would be Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crore
only) divided into 5,00,00,000 (Five Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each by
creation of additional 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore fifty lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each ranking pari-passu in all the respect with the existing equity shares of the Company.

The proposed increase in the authorized capital requires alteration of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company and the Board of Directors recommends the passing of this
resolution as ordinary resolution .

The Directors are deemed to be interested or concerned in this resolution to the extent of their
holding of equity shares of the company.

Item No. 8

In order to maximizing shareholders wealth by capitalizing the profit, the Board of Directors
(“Board”), at its meeting held on August 23, 2022, after considering the available reserves,
subject to the consent of the Shareholders of the Company and all other requisite approvals,
permissions, sanctions had approved and recommended to capitalize to the extent of
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Rs.21,90,67,350/- (Rupees Twenty one Crore Ninety Lakhs Sixty Seven Thousand Three
Hundred Fifty only) or such other amount from and out of the Securities Premium and/or Free
Reserves and/or Retained Earnings, for issue and allotment of bonus shares in the ratio of 1
(One) new equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each for every 1 (One) existing equity
shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each of the Company held by the existing Shareholders as
on the ‘Record Date” to be determined by the Board.

Article 121 of the Articles of Association of the Company permits capitalization out of securities
premium account and/or Free Reserves and/or Retained Earnings, for the purpose of issue of
bonus equity shares.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 63 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
and subject to applicable statutory and regulatory approvals, if any, the issue of bonus shares
of the Company requires the approval of the Shareholders of the Company. Accordingly,
approval of the Shareholders of the Company is hereby sought by way of ordinary resolution
as set out in this Notice.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out in this Notice,
except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

The Board recommends the Resolution as set out in the notice for the approval of Shareholders.

Item No. 9

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), transactions with
related parties which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are
exempted from the obligation of obtaining prior approval of shareholders. With effect from 1st
April, 2022, Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), mandates prior approval of
the Shareholders through ordinary resolution for all “‘material” Related Party Transactions. For
this purpose, a transaction with a Related Party shall be considered ‘material’, if such
transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions
during a financial year, exceed “1,000 crores or 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company, whichever is lower.

SEBI, vide its circular dated 30t March, 2022, has clarified that a Related Party Transaction
approved by the Audit Committee prior to 1%t April, 2022, which continues beyond this date
and if it becomes material as per the materiality threshold provided above, requires approval
of the shareholders.

The particulars of the contract / arrangement with related parties are as under:
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Particulars 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6.
Name of Ostwal Krishana Seasons Nirmala Real | Shree Ganpati | Kanchi Resorts
Related Party Phoschem Phoschem International Infrastructure Fertilizers Private Limited
(India) Limited Limited Private Limited Private Limited Limited
Nature Holding Entities over | Entities over | Entities over | Entities over | Entities over
Relationship with | Company which Key | which Key | which Key | which Key | which Key
the Company Management Management Management Management Management
Personnel  are | Personnel are able | Personnel are able | Personnel are | Personnel are
able to exercise | to exercise | to exercise | able to exercise | able to exercise
significant significant significant significant significant
influence influence influence influence influence
Type, material | Sale, purchase, | Sale, purchase, | Sale, purchase, | Sale, purchase, | Sale, purchase, | Sale, purchase,
terms supply of goods | supply of goods | supply of goods | supply of goods | supply of goods | supply of
particulars of the | and availing/ | and availing/ | and availing/ | and availing/ | and  availing/ | goods and
proposed rendering of | rendering of | rendering of | rendering of | rendering of | availing/
transaction services, selling | services, selling | services, selling or | services, selling or | services, selling | rendering  of
or otherwise | or otherwise | otherwise otherwise or otherwise | services, selling
disposing of, or | disposing of, or | disposing of, or | disposing of, or | disposing of, or | or  otherwise
buying, buying, buying, property | buying, property | buying, disposing of, or
property of any | property of any | of any kind, | of any kind, | property of any | buying,
kind, Directly or | kind, Directly or | Directly or | Directly or | kind, Directly or | property of any
through through through through through kind, Directly
Appointment of | Appointment of | Appointment of | Appointment of | Appointment of | or through
Agent, Leasing | Agent, Leasing | Agent, Leasing of | Agent, Leasing of | Agent, Leasing | Appointment
of Property of | of Property of | Property of any | Property of any | of Property of | of Agent,
any kind or any | any kind or any | kind or any other | kind or any other | any kind or any | Leasing of
other other transactions of | transactions of | other Property of any
transactions of | transactions of | whatever nature | whatever nature | transactions of | kind or any
whatever nature | whatever nature | with related | with related | whatever nature | other
with related | with related | parties parties with related | transactions of
parties parties parties whatever
nature with
related parties
Tenure of Recurring Recurring Recurring Recurring Recurring Recurring
proposed Transactions Transactions Transactions Transactions Transactions Transactions
transaction
Value of Not exceeding | Not exceeding | Not exceeding 20 | Not exceeding 5 | Not exceeding | Not exceeding
proposed 100 crores in a | 250 crores in a | crores in a | crores in a | 10 crores in a | 10 crores in a
Transaction financial year financial year financial year financial year financial year financial year
Percentage of the | 20.3 % 50.9% 4.1% 1.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Company’s
annual
consolidated
turnover for the
immediately
preceding
financial year that
is represented by
the value of the
proposed
transaction
(a)Details of the | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

connection
transaction.
(b) where
financial

indebtedness

or give

source of funds in

the proposed

incurred to make
loans,
inter-corporate
deposits, advances
or investments
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(i) nature
indebtedness;

and

(iii) tenure;
terms,
interest
repayment
security)
unsecured
(d) Purpose

be utilised

(ii) cost of funds;

(©) Applicable
including
covenants, tenure,

schedule, whether
secured (nature of

which funds will

Justification as to | Our group | Our group | Both Companies, | Both Companies, | Our group | Both
why the RPT is in | companies companies being part of the | being part of the | companies Companies,
the interest of the | having same | having same | Ostwal  Group, | Ostwal  Group, | having same | being part of
Company business line | business line | these transactions | these transactions | business line | the Ostwal
and transactions | and transactions | not only help not only help and transactions | Group, these
between the | between the | smoothen smoothen between the | transactions
companies companies business business companies not only help
including including operations for | operations for | including smoothen
purchasing and | purchasing and | both the | both the | purchasing and | business
selling of raw | selling of raw | companies. companies. selling of raw | operations for
material and | material and material and | both the
other other other companies.
transactions transactions transactions
from time to | from time to from time to
time, help | time, help time, help
smoothen smoothen smoothen
business business business
operations  for | operations for operations  for
the companies. | the companies. the companies.
The transaction | The transaction The transaction
is at arm’s |is at arm's is at arm’s
length and in | length and in length and in
the ordinary | the ordinary the ordinary
course of | course of course of
business of the | business of the business of the
respective respective respective
companies. companies. companies.
Details about | Arm’s  length | Arm’s  length | Arm’s length | Arm’s length | Arm’s  length | Arm’s length
valuation, arm’s | pricing; pricing; pricing; pricing; pricing; pricing;
length combination of | combination of | combination of | combination of | combination of | combination of
ordinary course of | cost-plus cost-plus cost-plus markup | cost-plus markup | cost-plus cost-plus
business markup and | markup and | and market | and market | markup and | markup and
market market benchmarking benchmarking market market
benchmarking benchmarking benchmarking benchmarking
Valuation or other | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
external report, if
any, relied upon
by the listed
entity in relation
to the proposed
transaction
Any other | All relevant | All relevant | All relevant | All relevant | All relevant | All relevant
information information information information forms | information forms | information information
relevant forms a part of | forms a part of | a part of this | a part of this | forms a part of | forms a part of

important for the | this Explanatory | this Explanatory | Explanatory Explanatory this Explanatory | this
shareholders statement statement statement setting | statement setting | statement Explanatory
take an informed | cetting out | setting out | out material facts. | out material facts. | setting out | statement
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source of funds
in  connection
with the
proposed
transaction.

(b) where any

financial
indebtedness is
incurred to
make or give
loans, inter-
corporate
deposits,
advances or
investments
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decision material facts. material facts. material facts. setting out
material facts.

Particulars 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12.

Name of the | R. V. Spinners | PankajOstwal Praveen Ostwal Mahendra Ekta Jain Nitu Jain

Related Party Private Limited Kumar Ostwal

Nature of | Entities over which | Interested Interested Interested Interested Interested

Relationship Key  Management | Director Director Director Director Director

with the | Personnel are able to

Company exercise significant
influence

Type, material | Sale, purchase, | Selling or | Selling or | Selling or | Selling or | Selling or

terms and | supply of goods and | otherwise otherwise otherwise otherwise otherwise

particulars  of | availing/ rendering | disposing of, or | disposing of, or | disposing of, or | disposing of, or | disposing of, or

the  proposed | of services, selling or | buying, buying, buying, buying, buying, property

transaction otherwise disposing | property of any | property of any | property of any | property of any | of any kind,
of, or buying, | kind, Directly or | kind, Directly or | kind, Directly or | kind, Directly or | Directly or
property of any | through through through through through
kind, Directly or | Appointment of | Appointment of | Appointment of | Appointment of | Appointment of
through Agent, Leasing | Agent, Leasing | Agent, Leasing | Agent, Leasing | Agent, Leasing of
Appointment of | of Property of | of Property of | of Property of | of Property of | Property of any
Agent, Leasing of | any kind or any | any kind or any | any kind or any | any kind or any | kind or any other
Property of any kind | other other other other transactions  of
or any other | transactions of | transactions of | transactions of | transactions of | whatever nature
transactions of | whatever nature | whatever nature | whatever nature | whatever nature | with related
whatever nature | with related | with related | with related | with related | parties
with related parties parties parties parties parties

Tenure of the | Recurring Recurring Recurring Recurring Recurring Recurring

proposed Transactions Transactions Transactions Transactions Transactions Transactions

transaction

Value of the | Not exceeding 5 | Not exceeding | Not exceeding | Not exceeding | Not exceeding | Not exceeding 15

proposed crores in a financial | 15 crores in a | 15 crores in a | 15 crores in a | 15 crores in a | crores in a

Transaction year financial year financial year financial year financial year financial year

Percentage  of | 1.00% 3.1% 3.1% 3.1% 3.1% 3.1%

the Company’s

annual

consolidated

turnover for the

immediately

preceding

financial year

that is

represented by

the value of the

proposed

transaction

(a)Details of the | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
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(i) nature of
indebtedness;
(ii) cost of
funds; and

(iii) tenure;

(c) Applicable
terms, including

covenants,
tenure, interest
rate, repayment
schedule,
whether secured
(nature of
security) or
unsecured

(d) Purpose for
which funds
will be utilised

Justification as

Both Companies,

Company enters

Company enters

Company enters

Company enters

Company enters

to why the RPT | being part of the | into various | into various | into various | into various | into various
is in the interest | Ostwal Group, these | transactions transactions transactions transactions transactions with
of the Company | transactions not only | with Directors | with Directors | with Directors | with Directors | Directors and
help smoothen | and there | and there | and there | and there | there relative
business operations | relative relative relative relative including
for both the | including including including including rendering  and
companies. rendering and | rendering and | rendering and | rendering and | availing of
availing of | availing of | availing of | availing of | services, and
services, and | services, and | services, and | services, and | other
other other other other transactions from
transactions transactions transactions transactions time to time.
from time to | from time to | from time to | from time to | these
time. time. time. time. transactions not
these these these these only help
transactions not | transactions not | transactions not | transactions not | smoothen
only help | only help | only help | only help | business
smoothen smoothen smoothen smoothen operations,
business business business business but also ensure
operations, operations, operations, operations, services without
but also ensure | but also ensure | but also ensure | but also ensure | interruptions.
services without | services without | services without | services without
interruptions. interruptions. interruptions. interruptions.
Details  about | Arm’s length | Arm’s length | Arm’s length | Arm’s length | Arm’s length | Arm’s length
valuation, arm’s | pricing; combination | pricing; pricing; pricing; pricing; pricing;
length and | of cost-plus markup | combination of | combination of | combination of | combination of | combination of
ordinary course | and market | cost-plus cost-plus cost-plus cost-plus cost-plus markup
of business benchmarking markup and | markup and | markup and | markup and | and market
market market market market benchmarking
benchmarking benchmarking benchmarking benchmarking
Valuation or | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
other external
report, if any,
relied upon by
the listed entity
in relation to
the  proposed
transaction
Any other | All relevant | All relevant | All relevant | All relevant | All relevant | All relevant
information information forms a | information information information information information
relevant or | part of this | forms a part of | forms a part of | forms a part of | forms a part of | forms a part of
important  for | Explanatory this Explanatory | this Explanatory | this Explanatory | this Explanatory | this Explanatory
the statement setting out | statement statement statement statement statement setting
shareholders to | material facts. setting out | setting out | setting out | setting out | out material
take an material facts. material facts. material facts. material facts. facts.
informed
decision
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All the Related Party Transaction is in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length

basis. The transaction shall also be reviewed/monitored on an annual basis by the Audit
Committee of the Company and shall remain within the proposed limits as placed before the
shareholders. Any subsequent “Material Modification” in the proposed transaction, as defined
by the Audit Committee as a part of Company’s ‘Policy on Related Party Transactions’, shall
be placed before the shareholders for approval, in terms of Regulation 23(4) of the Listing
Regulations.

Members are hereby informed that pursuant to second proviso of section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, no member of the company shall vote on such ordinary resolution to
approve any contract or arrangement, if such member is a related party.

None of the Directors and other KMP of the Company and their respective relatives (to the
extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any) in any way, are concerned or interested
either directly or indirectly, financially or otherwise in the Resolution set out in the
accompanying Notice.

The Board Recommends the ordinary Resolution set out for the approval of Members.

Dated: 23/08/2022 By Order of the Board of Directors
Place: Bhilwara For Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited
Sd/-
(Pallavi Sukhwal)

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION, 2015

As required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation,
2015 the particulars of Directors who are proposed to be appointed/reappointed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting are as follows:

Appointment/Reappointment

1. Mr. Sourabh Gupta (DIN 07177647) retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and is eligible for reappointment.

Mr. Sourabh Gupta aged 37 years, presently Whole Time Director and Chief Financial Officer
of Company. He is Chartered Accountant by qualification. He is associated with the company
since 2010. He is Expertise Finance Accounts and Tax. He managing the financial, Commercial
and administrative matters of the company. He has been appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company with effect from May 19, 2014 and Director with effect from May 01,
2015. He is young and dynamic person, having 12 years’ experience and he is presently
looking into the financial and technical matters of the Company.

Mr. Sourabh Gupta is not a relative to the any of Directors of the Company. He is neither
Chairman nor a Member of any Committees of the Board of Company.

Mr. Sourabh Gupta does not hold any shares of the Company.

Certain additional information about Mr. Sourabh Gupta is as under:

Name of the Director Sourabh Gupta

DIN 07177647

Date of Birth 08/02/1984

Date of first appointment on the Board 01stMay 2015

Qualification Chartered Accountant, M.Com.
Nature of expertise in specific functional areas Finance Accounts and Taxation

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se | N.A.

Names of listed entities in which the person also | Nil

holds the directorship

The membership of Committees of the board Nil
listed entities from which the person has resigned in | Nil
the past three years

Shareholding of directors in the Company Nil

as on 31.03.2022
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Number of meetings of the Board He attended 11 Board meetings held
attended during the year during FY 2021-22

Directorship of other Companies as on Nil

31st March, 2022

Chairmanship/Membership of Other Nil

committees of Companies as on 31st March 2022

. Mr. Gopal Inani (DIN 09642942) appointed as a regularized Independent Director of the
Company for the five (5) consecutive years, not liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Gopal Inani aged 65 years, presently Additional Director of Company. Sh. Gopal Inani is
Mechanical Engineer from Board of Technical Education, Rajasthan and having 37 years’
experience in various companies as under:

e UltraTech Cement (Unit: Vikram Cement Works, KHOR, Neemuch, M.P.): - From October 1985
to February 2017, Senior Manager (Mechanical)

e Dhar cement Limited, JEERABAD, Manawar (M.P.): - From December 1983 to October 1985,
worked as Assistant Engineer (Mechanical)

e Mewar Sugar Mills, Bhupal Sagar, Chittorgarh (Rajasthan): - From March 1980 to December
1983, worked as Junior Engineer (Mechanical)

He played vital role in implementation of various safety standards at plant level and Worked
on Implementation of various systems i.e. ISO 9001 for quality, 14001 for environment, OHSAS
18001 for safety and SA 8000 for social accountability. He has also been responsible for Statuary
compliances of Indian Railway, BIS and Legal Metrological rules with respect to cement
industries.

Certain additional information about Mr. Gopal Inani is as under:

Name of the Director Gopal Inani

DIN 09642942

Date of Birth 05/02/1957

Date of first appointment on the Board 29th July 2022
Qualification Mechanical Engineer
Nature of expertise in specific functional Technical and Project field
areas

Disclosure of relationships between N.A.

directors inter-se

Names of listed entities in which the person | Krishana Phoschem Limited
also holds the directorship
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The membership of Committees of the
board

I. Audit Committee:

A. Chairman: NIL

B. Member: 1

II. Nomination & Remuneration Committee:
A. Chairman: NIL

B. Member:1

III. Stakeholder Relationship Committee:
A. Chairman: NIL

B. Member:1

IV. Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee:

A. Chairman: 1

B. Member: NIL

V. Independent Directors Committee:

A. Chairman: 1

B. Member: NIL

committees of Companies as on 31st March
2022

Listed entities from which the person Nil
has resigned in the past three years

Shareholding of directors in the Company Nil
as on 31.03.2022

Number of meetings of the Board attended | Nil
during the year

Directorship of other Companies as on Nil
31st March, 2022

Chairmanship/Membership of Other Nil
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the Year 2021-2022

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 25" Annual Report together with the Audited
Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021
Turnover and Other Income 49174 .80 18586.77
Profit Before Taxation 8117.87 2857.56
Taxation/Deferred Tax 2415.83 833.37
Profit /(Loss) after Tax 5702.04 2024.19
Other comprehensive income 3.19 -14.62
Total comprehensive income 5705.23 2009.58
Earning Per equity Share 26.03 9.24
13108.83 18586.77 49174.80 1485.66 2024.19 5702.04
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIR

During the year ended, the Company has reported revenue from operations of Rs 491.49 crores in its
business registering at strong growth of 164.65 %.

The Net Profit for the year ended March 31, 2022 stood at Rs 57.02 crores translating into a healthy
annual growth of 181.69%. The Earnings per share for the year is Rs. 26.03 compared to Rs. 9.24 for the
last year.

COVID-19 IMPACT
The COVID-19 pandemic, continued to be a global challenge, creating disruption across the world. In
the first three months of FY 2022, affected most of business operations.

COVID-19 is an unprecedented challenge. The Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of
mitigating the impact of the challenges being faced in the business. The Company operates its business
in conformity with the protocol prescribed by Govt authorities with highest safety and well-being of
all the stakeholders including workers and staff at all its plant locations, various branch offices and the
head office.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS OF COMPANY
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of Company.

LISTING OF THE COMPANY
The Shares of your Company are listed on Platform of “National Stock Exchange”. The annual Listing
Fees for the Year 2022-23 has been paid to the exchange.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year ended 31st March 2022, there was no change in the issued and subscribed capital of
the Company, the capital as on 31t March 2022 continues to be 2190.67 Lakhs comprising of 219.07
Lakhs shares of 10/ - each.

ANNUAL RETURN:

The information required pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (a) and Section 92 (3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
the Annual Return for the financial year ended on March 31¢t, 2022 is available on the website of the
Company viz. http:/ /www.mbapl.com

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, the Business Responsibility and Sustainability
Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, is provided in Annexure I forming part of this
report.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS & STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT
The term of M/s. Rajneesh Kanther & Associates, Chartered Accountants, statutory auditors of the

company will be expiring in the conclusion of this 25" Annual General Meeting, therefore, the Board
has recommended the appointment of M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates, Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of 05 years from the conclusion of this annual general meeting till the conclusion
of 30th AGM held in the year 2027 subject to approval of shareholders of the Company.

M/s Ashok Kanther & Associates have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that their appointment,
if made, would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that they are not disqualified for
appointment.

The Auditor’s Report is self-explanatory and therefore, does not call for any further comments/
clarifications and Auditor’s report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR & SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) Rules, 2014, the company has appointed M/s
Sourabh Bapna & Associates, a practicing company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of
the Company for financial year 2022-23. The Company has received their consent for Re-appointment.

The Secretarial Audit report for financial year 2021-22 received from Sourabh Bapna & Associates is
provided in Annexure II forming part of this report. The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

COST AUDITOR
The Company has made and maintained cost accounts and records as specified by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

For the financial year 2021-22, M/s. K. C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Accountant have conducted the
audit of the cost records of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has
appointed M/s K.C. Moondra & Associates, Cost Accountants (Registration No. 101814), at such
remuneration as shall be fixed by the board of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the
cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2023. The Re-appointment and
the remuneration of the cost Auditor is required to be ratified subsequently by the Members of the
Company and further subject to the approval of the Central Government.

The Company has received their written consent and confirmation that the Re-appointment will be in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.
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INTERNAL AUDITOR & AUDITORS’ REPORT

As per section 138 of The Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the company has Re-Appointed M/s Sourabh Bapna & Associates, Practicing Companies Secretaries
as Internal Auditor to conduct Internal Audit for the Financial Year 2022-2023.The Company has
received their consent for Re-appointment.

The Internal Audit Report is received by the Company and the same is reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee and Board of Directors for the year 2021-2022. All the observations made by the
Internal Auditors have been attended to.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The company has in place an adequate internal control system, which is commensurate with the size,
scale and complexity of the company. The internal auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of
internal controls and concurrently audit the majority of the transactions in value terms. Independence
of the audit compliance is ensured by the direct reporting of Internal Audit Division and Internal
Auditors to the Audit Committee of the Board.

During the period under review the Internal Financial Control were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation were observed.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS, IF ANY
No fraud has been reported by auditors under section 143 (12) of the companies act 2013.

RESERVES

During the year under review, The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended for
transfer of any amount to the Reserve from surplus for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. An
amount of 16663.35 Lakhs (previous year 11070.84 Lakhs) is proposed to be held as Retained Earnings.

DIVIDEND

The Directors are pleased to recommend a final dividend of 0.50 per share (i.e. 5%) on the Equity Shares
of the Company of 10 each for the year ended March 31, 2022 (previous year 0.50 per share). The
dividend payout is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Dividend payout for the Financial Year under review is in accordance with the Company’s
Dividend Distribution Policy.

In terms of Regulation 43A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company is made
available on the website of the Company viz. www.mbapl.com.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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NO DEFAULT
The company has not defaulted in payment of interest and/ or repayment of loan to any of the financial
institutions and/or bank.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Sourabh Gupta (DIN 07177647), Director of the Company, retire by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment.

Mr. Pankaj Ostwal, Managing Director of the Company, Mr. Sourabh Gupta, Whole Time Director &
Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Pallavi Sukhwal, Company Secretary of the Company were designated
as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS
The policy on appointment of directors, remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of
the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report and is
also available on the Company’s website at www.mbapl.com.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director under Section 149(7)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the effect that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms and conditions for appointment of the
Independent Directors are incorporated on the website of the Company.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite
qualifications, experience and expertise and that they hold highest standards of integrity.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors duly met 11 (Eleven) times on 29th April 2021, 10th June 2021, 15t June 2021, 29th
July 2021, 07th August 2021, 27th August 2021, 9t November 2021, 22nd November 2021, 01st December
2021, 04th February 2022 and 28t March 2022 in F.Y. 2021-22 for which proper notices were given and
the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in the Minutes Book maintained for the purpose.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE & ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT

The company does not make any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and
There is no proceeding pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (IBC Code).

Further, there has not been any instance of one-time settlement of the Company with any bank or
financial institution.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to the Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of
ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
is provided in Annexure III forming part of this report.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGOING

The details as required under section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8 of
Companies (Account) Rule, 2014 for conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange earnings and outgo are given in Annexure IV forming part of this report.

PARTICULAR OF LOAN, GUARANTEE AND INVESTMENT UNDER SECTION 186

The information required for loans given, investment made or guarantee given or security provided
during the year under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rule 11 of Companies
(Meetings of Board and its power) Rule, 2014 is provided in Annexure V forming part of this report
and also provided in the financial statement of the Company (please refer Notes of the balance sheet).

RISK MANAGEMENT

Proper Risk Management Practices have been followed for the purpose of risk identification, analysis,
and mitigation planning, monitoring, and reporting. Although, all risks cannot be eliminated, but
mitigation and contingency plans are developed to lessen their impact if they occur.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI), as applicable.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION UNDER SECTION 188

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length
basis and were in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party
transactions made by the company during the financial year which were in the conflict of interest of
the company.

Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with rule
8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure VI in Form AOC-2 and the same
forms part of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORTS
The Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, as required pursuant to
the SEBI ((Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is provided in Annexure
VII and Annexure VIII respectively forming part of this report.
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BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing regulations, the Board
has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own, working of its Committees and the
Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has carried out evaluation of every Director.
The Independent Directors evaluated performance of the Non-Independent Directors, the Board as
whole and the Chairperson of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD:

The Board of Directors of your Company has constituted the following committees in terms of the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements), Regulation, 2015:

AUDIT COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 177:

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of 2 Independent Directors and 1 Executive Director.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is financially literate and majority of them having accounting
or related financial management experience. Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

The following Directors are the members of Audit Committee.

(1) Shri Arvind Kothari Chairman
(2) Shri Pankaj Ostwal Member
(3) Shri Bheru Lal Ostwal Member

During the year, the Committee had 4 Meetings i.e. on 15% June 2021, 29t July 2021, 9t November
2021, and 04th February 2022.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 178:

In pursuant to the provisions of section 178 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration committee is duly
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Policy is disclosed on the website of the Company
viz. www.mbapl.com

The following Directors are the members of nomination and Remuneration Committee.

(1) Shri Bheru Lal Ostwal Chairman
(2) Shri Arvind Kothari Member
(3) Shri Paras Mal Surana Member

The Committee meets Twice in a year and also as and when any remuneration is to be fixed for any
Director /Managing Director and Key Managerial Personnel. During the year the Committee had a
Meetings i.e. on 29th April 2021, 27t August 2021.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPCOMMITTEE:
The following Committee of Directors looks after the Investor Grievances:
(1) Shri Arvind Kothari Chairman
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(2) Shri Pankaj Ostwal Member
(3) Shri Bheru Lal Ostwal Member

During the year the 4 Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings were held on 15t June 2021, 29th
July 2021, 09th November 2021 and 04t February 2022.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS COMMITTEE:
The following are the members of independent director’s committee:

(1) Shri Bheru Lal Ostwal Chairman
(2) Shri Arvind Kothari Member
(3) Shri Paras Mal Surana Member

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 04th February, 2022.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

In pursuant to the provisions of section 135 and schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR
Committee of the Board of Directors was formed to recommend (a) the policy on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and (b) implementation of the CSR Projects or Programme to be undertaken by
the Company as per CSR Policy for consideration and approval by the Board of Directors. CSR Policy
is disclosed on the website of the Company viz. http:/ /mbapl.com/pdf/CSR_Policy MBAPL.pdf

As per provision of new enacted Company Act, 2013, the Board of Directors have formed Corporate
Social Responsibilities Committee having the following members: -

(1) Shri Arvind Kothari Chairman
(2) Shri Paras Mal Surana Member
(3) Shri Bheru Lal Ostwal Member

Our Company considers social responsibility as an integral part of its business activities and endeavors
to utilize allocable CSR budget for the benefit of society.

During the year the Committee had 2 Meetings i.e. on 09t November 2021 and 28t March 2022.
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility of the Company is provided in Annexure IX forming
part of this report.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established vigil mechanism policy for Directors and employees to report concerns
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct or
Ethics Policy. Vigil Mechanism Policy is disclosed on the website of the Company viz.
http:/ /mbapl.com/pdf/Vigil-mechanism.pdf
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the ends of the financial year to which this financial statement relate on the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which would
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operation.

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company.

CREDIT RATINGS:

During fiscal 2022 Infomerics Valuation and Rating Pvt. Ltd. (Integrated Financial Omnibus Metrics
Research of International Corporate Systems) has assigned following Credit Ratings in respect of
borrowings availed by the Company-

e Rating upgraded from ‘IVR BBB+/Stable’ to ‘IVR A-/Stable’ on the long-term fund based bank
facilities - Term Loan and Cash Credit.

e Rating upgraded from ‘IVR A2 to ‘IVR A2+’ on the short term non-fund based bank facilities - Letter
of credit.

e Rating upgraded from ‘IVR A2’ to ‘IVR A2+’ on the short term non-fund based bank facilities - (PSR)
Pre Settlement Risk.

e Rating assigned as ‘IVR A-/Stable” on the long-term fund based bank facilities - GECL (Working
Capital Term Loan)

e Rating assigned as ‘IVR A-/Stable” on the proposed long-term fund based facilities -~Cash Credit.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainee) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the
year 2021-2022.

No. of complaints received: Nil

No. of complaints disposed off: Nil

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (3) (c) & 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to Directors Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:
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That in the preparation of the Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of profit of the company for the year
under review.

That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

That the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 on a going
concern basis.

That the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

That the directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Your Company is ISO 9001:2015 certified and maintains high quality of product and processes and the
company is conscious about its responsibility towards the upkeep of environment and maintenance of
high safety and health standards at its work places.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Directors are thankful to the Central and State Government Departments, Organizations and

Agencies for their continued guidance and co-operation. The Directors are grateful to all valuable
Stakeholders, Dealers, Vendors, Banks and other business associates for their excellent support and
help rendered during the year. The Directors also acknowledged the appreciation to the team of
executives, staff and workers, who have shown devotion and efficiency in performing their jobs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Pankaj Ostwal) (Sourabh Gupta)
Place Bhilwara Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director
&
Chief Financial Officer
Date 30.05.2022 DIN 02586806 DIN 07177647
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ANNEXURE ‘T’
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 2021-22

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited always put sustainability at the heart of its business
approach. We always put our responsibilities on priority basis to our stakeholders. We have
balanced success as a business with unwavering focus on exemplary governance and
responsiveness to the needs of the ecology and society.

Our Company has adopted the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) for
financial year 2021-22 in order to provide enhanced disclosures on its ESG practices and
priorities. The BRSR follows the NGRBC principles on the social, environmental and economic

responsibilities of business.

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

1. | CIN L24121R]J1997PLC029126
2. | Name of the Company Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited
3. | Year of Incorporation October 22, 1997
4. | Address of Registered office 5-O-21, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony
Bhilwara (Raj.) 311001
5. | Address of Corporate Office 5-O-21, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony
Bhilwara (Raj.) 311001
6. | E-mail ID secretarial@mbapl.com
7. | Telephone No. 01482-237104, 233091
8. | Website www.mbapl.com
9. | Financial Year reported Financial Year 2021-22
10. | Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where | National Stock Exchange of India Limited
shares are listed (NSE)
11. | Paid up Capital (Rs.) ¥21,90,67,350
12. | Name and contact details (telephone, email | Mr. Sourabh Gupta
address) of the person who may be | (Whole Time Director& CFO)
contacted in case of any queries on the | Email Id: secretarial@mbapl.com
BRSR report Mobile No.- 01482-237104
13. | Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures | The disclosures under this report are
under this report made on a standalone | made on a Standalone basis.
basis (i.e. only for the entity) or on a
consolidated basis (i.e. for the entity and all
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the entities which form a part of its
consolidated financial statements, taken
together).

II. PRODUCTS/SERVICES

14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

S. No. | Description of | Description of Business Activity % of Turnover
Main Activity of the entity
1 Fertilizer Manufacturing,  Distribution, Sales & 93.37
> Chemical Mark.e.tmg of crop Protection and crop 06.63
Nutrition Products

15. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

S. Product/Service NIC Code % of total Turnover
No. contributed

1 Single Super Phosphate (SSP) 20122 52.24%

2 Nitrogen, phosphorus and potassium (NPK) | 20122 23.21%

3 Di-ammonium Phosphate(DAP) 20122 2.73%

4 Prom 20121 0.89%

5 Potash 20122 5.27%

6 Sulphuric Acid & Sulphur 20112 06.48%

7 Phosphoric Acid 20112 00.15%

8 Other Fertilizer Product 20121 09.03%

IT1. Operations

16. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total
National 2 4 6
International - - -

17. Markets served by the entity:

a) Number of locations

Locations

Number

National (No. of States)

10

International (No. of Countries)

b) What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?
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0%

c). A brief on types of customers

The Company serves various customers including retailers, distributors through its domestic
business. The Company’s products are consumed within India.

IV. Employees
18. Details as at the end of Financial Year:

a. Employees and workers (including differently abled):

S. | Particulars Total (A) | Male Female
No. No. (B) % (B /| No.(C) % (C /
A) A)
EMPLOYEES
1. | Permanent (D) 149 147 98.66% |2 01.34%
2. | Other than Permanent (E) |0 0 00.00% |0 00.00%
3. | Total employees (D +E) | 149 147 98.66% |2 01.34%
WORKERS
4. | Permanent (F) 106 106 100% 0 00.00%
5. | Other than Permanent (G) | 390 390 100% 0 00.00%
6. | Total workers (F + G) 496 496 100% 0 00.00%
b. Differently abled Employees and workers:
S. | Particulars Total (A) | Male Female
No. No. (B) | % (B/A) | No.(C) [%(C/A)
DIFFERENTLY ABLED EMPLOYEES
1. | Permanent (D) - - - - -
2. | Other than Permanent (E) - - - - -
3. | Total employees (D + E) - - - - -
DIFFERENTLY ABLED WORKERS
4. | Permanent (F) - - - - -
5. | Other than Permanent (G) - - - - -
6. | Total workers (F + G) - - - - -
19. Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women
Total (A) No. and percentage of Females

No. (B) % (B/ A)
Board of Directors 8 1 12.50 %
Key Management Personnel 3 1 33.33%

20. Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers
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(Trends for the past 3 years)
FY- 2021-22 FY- 2020-21 FY-2019-20

Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total | Male | Female | Total
Permanent 480 | 80.00 6.27 8.56 0.00 829 | 2.80 | 40.00 4.05
Employees
permanent | 50 | 000 | 386 | 455 | 000 | 455 | 556 | 000 | 556
Workers

V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

21. (a) Names of holding/ subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures

S. Name of the holding | Whether % of shares | Does the entity indicated
No. |/ subsidiary / | holding/ held by listed | at column A, participate
associate companies | Subsidiary/ entity in the Business
/ joint ventures (A) Associate/ Joint Responsibility
Venture initiatives of the listed
entity? (Yes/No)
1. Ostwal Phoschem | Holding 65.05% No
(India) Limited

VI. CSR Details

22. (i) Whether CSR is applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes, refer to
Annexure IX to the Board’s report

(ii) Turnover as on March 31st 2022 (in Rs.) 49148.95 Lacs
(iii) Net Worth as on March 315t 2022 (in Rs.) 20531.71 Lacs
VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National
Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct:

Stakeholder | Grievance FY FY
group from | Redressal |Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
whom Mechanism

complaint is | in
received Place

(Yes/No)
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ar Yes,' Number of | Number of | ool Number  of | Number of | Remar
then  provide complaints complaints s complaints complaints ks
web-link  for | gi1eq during | pending filed during | Pending
grievance theyear resolution at theyear resolution at
redress policy) close of the close of the
year year

Communities Yes 0 0 - 0 0 -
www.mbapl.com

Investors Yes 0 0 - 0 0 -

(other than www.mbapl.com

shareholders)

Shareholders Yes 0 0 - 0 0 -
www.mbapl.com

Employees Yes 0 0 - 0 0 -

and workers www.mbapl.com

Customers Yes 0 0 - 0 0 -
www.mbapl.com

Value Chain Yes 0 0 - 0 0 -

Partners www.mbapl.com

Other (please Yes 0 0 - 0 0 -

specify) www.mbapl.com

24. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues
The Company has identifying the risks on Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) matters. The
Company believes that a materiality assessment on sustainability issues will help to analyze and
prioritize the issues that have the biggest impact from the Environment, Social and Governance (ESG)

erspective.

S. | Material issue | wheth | Rationale for | In case of risk, | Financial

No. | jdentified er risk | identifying the risk/| approach to implications of the
or opportunity adapt or risk or opportunity
opport mitigate (Indicate positive or
unity negative
(R/O) implications)
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1. Environmental [Risk Water scarcity can impair [Employee Negative
Footprint-Water the company’s feducation around
management operations and disrupt [saving water,

business. more efficient use
of water in
campuses, Rain
water harvesting,
recycling of waste
water.

2. [Environmental [Risk Inadvertent non- [Reduction in [Negative
Footprint -Waste compliance to existing waste generation,
management and emerging maximization of

regulations around frecycling and
recycling and the circular [reuse.

economy can result in

economic penalties and

reputation damage.

3. |Corporate Risk Strong corporate Kindly refer to [Negative
Governance - governance is core to [“Material aspects
Board oversight, achieving the and company
Conflict of] organization’s  mission japproach to them”

Interest, Ethics, and any risks can [in

Risk and undermine stakeholder |Corporate
Compliance, trust, damage reputation |Governance
Succession and disrupt business. Report
Planning
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4. |Changing Risk and Opportunity We supported our [Positive
expectations Opportu [* Facilitating best-in- |employees to
of the nity class employee navigate the
workforce experience and being |pandemic
and work recognized among the [seamlessly
environments best employers in our |through measures
key operating regions |such as
will help us vaccination
attract, hire and retain |centers, hospital
the talent. support,
* Creating a diverse (increased
workforce to attract [insurance
best-in-class talent and |coverage, and
improve productivity more.
Risk
* Continued employee
preference to work out
of remote locations on a
long-term basis and our
ability to grow
rofitably.

. [Safety risk Risk and The manufacturing |Adherence to [Positive: Adoption
Opportu pperations of the jsafety standards, |of latest and cutting
nity Company require [the Company’s edge

employees to interact Policy and highest Safety related
with plant, machinery, |operational protocols and
and material handling |standards for measures to create a
equipment, all of which fhandling safe work
carry an inherent risk of lhazardous environment
injury materials at Negative: Impact
plants. on health and well-
being of employees
at the Company.
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SECTION B: MANAGEMENT AND PROCESS DISCLOSURES

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in
place towards adopting the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure
Questions

P| P | P | P
1 2 3

Policy and management processes

1. a. Whether your entity’s policy/policies
cover each principle and its core elements
of the NGRBCs. (Yes/No)

Y |Y |Y

b. Has the policy been approved by the
Board? (Yes/No)

c. Web Link of the Policies, if available

www.mbapl.com

2. Whether the entity has translated the pdy
into procedures. (Yes / No)

Guidelines & procedures have been developed
in line with and covering all the 9 principles
related to the respective policy

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your |Y |Y |Y |Y |Y |Y |Y |Y |Y
value chain partners? (Yes/No)

4. Name of the national and international
codes/ certifications/labels/ standards | ¢ 1SO 9001:2015
(e.g. Forest Stewardship  Council, | ¢ NABL Accreditation Certificate
Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance, Trustee) ISO/IEC17025:2017

standards (e.g.SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS)
adopted by your entity and mapped to
each principle.

5. Specific commitments, goals and targets
set by the entity with defined timelines, if
any.

The Company is chalked out 5 year long term
planning and efforts are being under to adhere
to.

6. Performance of the entity against the
specific commitments, goals and targets
along-with reasons in case the same are
not met.

The Board of Directors of the Company has
empowered the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee to provide direction to the
management and exercise oversight on the
implementation of targets committed under
ESG.

Governance, leadership and oversight

7. Statement by director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG
related challenges, targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility regarding the

placement of this disclosure)

“Our Company is committed to make the business truly sustainable and socially responsible.

The Company is deeply committed to achieving ESG related objectives and continue to
prioritize related agenda over the near and medium term. The Company’s focus on ESG
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parameters is best reflected through values (Integrity | Unity | Responsibility | Pioneering
| Excellence) that are imbibed in all spheres of activity of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct which guides our interactions with all key
stakeholders including our Employees, Customers, Value Chain Partners, Communities,
Investors, Environment & Society. Corporate Social Responsibility is an integral part of our

culture.

8. Details of the highest authority responsible
for implementation and oversight of the
Business Responsibility policy (ies).

The Board of Directors of the Company and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee oversee
the implementation of the Business
Responsibility policies.

9. Does the entity have a specified Committee
of the Board/ Director responsible for
decision making on
sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If

The Stakeholders” Relationship Committee
(SRC) of the Board of Directors is responsible
for decision making on sustainability related
issues.

yes, provide details. DIN Name Designation
03268623 | Arvind Chairman
Kothari
02586806 | Pankaj Member
Ostwal
08377262 | Bheru Lal | Member
Ostwal
10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:
Subject for Review Whether review was | Frequency
undertaken by Director / | (Annually/ Half yearly/
Committee of the Board/ Quarterly/ Any other - please
Any other Committee specify)
PP |,P|P PP |P|P| P P P PP |P|P|P | P
1/2 /3|4 |5|6|/7 89| 1| 2| 3| 4|5 |6 |7 |89

Performance against

As a practice, policies of the Company are reviewed Annually or on a

above policies and | need basis by the Directors of the company. During this assessment, the

follow up action efficacy of the policies is reviewed and necessary changes to policies
and procedures are implemented.

Compliance with | The Company complies with all the applicable statutory requirements.

statutory

requirements d

relevance  to  the

principles, and,

rectification of any
non-compliances

11. Has the entity carried out independent
assessment/ evaluation of the working of

N
W
=
o
o
S
®
© =
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its policies by an external agency? | The processes and compliances, however, may
(Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the | be subject to scrutiny by internal auditors and
agency. regulatory compliances, as applicable.

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all Principles are covered by a policy,
reasons to be stated:

Questions

= g
N g
w
g
ur
>~
N
®
©

The entity does not consider the Principles
material to its business (Yes/No)

The entity is not at a stage where it is in a
position to formulate and implement the
policies on specified principles (Yes/No)

The entity does not have the financial .
or/human and technical resources available Not Applicable
forthe task (Yes/No)

It is planned to be done in the next financial
year (Yes/No)

Any other reason (please specify)

SECTION C: PRINCIPLE WISE PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURE

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the
Principles and Core Elements with key processes and decisions. The information sought is
categorized as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the essential indicators are expected to be
disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership indicators may be
voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be
socially, environmentally and ethically responsible.
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PRINCIPLE 1 BUSINESSES SHOULD CONDUCT AND GOVERN THEMSELVES WITH
INTEGRITY, AND IN A MANNER THAT IS ETHICAL, TRANSPARENT AND
ACCOUNTABLE

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles
during the financial year:

Segment Total number of | Topics / % of persons in
training and principles coveredunder the | respective category
awareness training and its impact covered by the
programmes awareness
held Programmes

Board of |1 Business Conduct, Economy | 100%

Directors and environmental, social and
governance parameters,
Corporate Governance

Key 3 Leadership in Governance and | 100%

Managerial Risk Management, Business

Personnel Responsibility Reporting,
Facilitating innovation in Board
Governance

Employees 2 Health and Safety Related | 80%

other  than Issues, Human Right Issue and

BOD  and Corporate Governance

KMPs

Workers 2 Health and Safety Related | 80%
Issues and Human Right Issue

2. Details of fines/ penalties /punishment/ award/ compounding fees/ settlement amountpaid
in proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMPs) with regulators/ lawenforcement
agencies/judicial institutions, in the financial year, in the following format(Note: the entity
shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as specified in Regulation 30d SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on the
entity’s website):

None

3. Of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision
preferred in cases where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.

None

4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in
brief and if available, provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes. Our Code of Conduct contains guidelines on anti-bribery and anti-corruption.
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Company is committed to upholding the highest moral and ethical standards, and does
not tolerate bribery or corruption in any form.

5. Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was
taken by any law enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

There have been no cases involving disciplinary action taken by any law enforcement agency
for the charges of bribery / corruption against directors / KMP / employees / workers that
have been brought to our attention

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

None

7. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines /
penalties / action taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions,on
cases of corruption and conflicts of interest.

None
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PRINCIPLE 2 BUSINESSES SHOULD PROVIDE GOODS AND SERVICES IN A
MANNER THAT IS SUSTAINABLE AND SAFE

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologiesto
improve the environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&Dand
capex investments made by the entity, respectively.

FY 2021-22 | FY 2020-21 | Details of improvement in
Environmental and Social impacts
R&D 0 0 -

Capex 0 0 -

2. a.Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)

Yes, The Company considers the social, ethical and environmental performance factors in
the process of selecting suppliers.

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?
60% of suppliers are covered in the responsible sourcing program.

3. Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and
disposing at the end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous
waste and (d) other waste.

The Company has adopted best practices to manage waste in an eco-friendly manner.

To achieve these objectives, the Company has implemented “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle” concept
for effective waste management. The Company endeavours to sustainably use and recycled
resources and create a circular economy where possible.

This ensures the efficacy of wastewater management and ensures that the systems are
running properly.

Plastic Waste Management

The Company has set up a system to collect plastic waste in order to meet its obligation of
collecting the plastic waste like torn HDPE bags & Metal scrap generated due to its products
The plastic waste is collected, segregated, and disposes off as per CPCB and MoEF Guide
lines.

Hazardous waste
Hazardous waste is handled as per the regulations prescribed by the national and state
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pollution control boards. Some of the initiatives to reprocess and re-use waste include re-
processing the materials generated in the granulation of fertilizers as well as the sludge waste
from raw materials.

Water Waste Management

Company have Implementing zero liquid discharge policy to enhance water efficiency of
products and promoting water efficient crop management practices among farmers, all
wastewater generated in the process is recovered, treated and reused in process.

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities
(Yes / No). If yes, whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer
Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps
taken to address the same.

Yes, EPR is applicable to the Company and we are in process to comply Extended Producer
Responsibility. However, as a leading manufacturer it is a business imperative that the
Company ensures safe disposal of the pre-consumer and post-consumer packaging. The
Company has been ensuring the collection and safe disposal of its packaging waste through
the waste minimization and recycling/reuse perspective.
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PRINCIPLE 3 BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT AND PROMOTE THE WELL-BEING OF ALL
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EMPLOYEES, INCLUDING THOSE IN THEIR VALUE CHAINS

1. a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

% of employees covered by
Catego | Tot | Health Accident Maternity Day Care
ry al Insurance insurance benefits facilities
(A) | Numbe | %(B/A) | Numbe | %(C/A | Numbe | %(D/A | Numbe | %(E/
r r(C) ) r ) r A)
(b) (D) (E)
Permanent employees
Male | 147 |47 31.97 147 100 - - - -
Female | 2 1 50.00 2 100 - - - -
Total | 149 |48 32.21 149 100 - - - -
Other than Permanent employees
Male |- - - - - - - - -
Female | - - - - - - - - -
Total |- - - - - - - - -
b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:
% of employees covered by
Cat | Tot | Health Accident Maternity Paternity Day Care
egor | al Insurance insurance benefits facilities facilities
y (A) | Num |%(B/A [Nu |%(C/ | Numb |%(D/ | Numb | %(E/ | Numb | %(F
ber ) mbe | A) er A) er A) er /A)
(b) 1(C) (D) (E) (E)
Permanent Workers

Mal | 106 |51 4811% | 106 |100% |- - - - - -
e
Fem | - - - - - - - - - - -
ale
Tota | 106 | 51 4811% | 106 |100% |- - - - - -
1
Other Than Permanent Workers
Mal | - - - - - - - - - - -
e
Fem | - - - - - - - - - - -
ale
Tota | - - - - - - - - - - -
1
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2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current FY and Previous Financial Year.

Current FY Previous FY
No. of [ No. of | Deducted No. of | No. of | Deducted
employees | workers |and employees | workers and
Benefits | Covered as | Covered | deposited Covered as | Covered as | deposited
%of total |as  %eof | with the | %of total | %of total | with the
employees | total authority employees | employees | authority
employe
es
PF 85.91% 91.51% Y 94.39% 35% Y
GRAT. | 81.88% 91.51% Y 65.42% 95% Y
ESI 32.21% 48.11% Y 47.66% 62 % Y
OTHER | - - - - - -

3. Accessibility of workplaces
Are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers,
as per the requirements of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2016? If not, whether
any steps are being taken by the entity in this regard.

The Company is in process of making all the required premises/ offices are accessible to differently
abled employees and workers.

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities Act, 2016? If so, provide a web-link to the policy.

The Company is governed by the code of conduct of the company whereby all the employees and
those eligible are provided with equal opportunities. The Company is committed by an inclusive
work culture without any discrimination on the grounds of race, caste, religion, colour, marital
status, gender, sex, age, nationality, ethnic origin, disability and such other grounds as prescribed
and protected by the applicable laws.

The code of conduct can be accessed at: https:/ /www.mbapl.com

5. Return to work and Retention rates of permanent employees and workers that tookparental

leave.
Permanent employees Permanent workers
Gender Return to work | Retention Return to work | Retention
rate rate rate rate
Male 100% 100% 100% 100%
Female 100% 100% 100% 100%
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6. Is there a mechanism available to receive and redress grievances for the following
categories of employees and worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.

Permanent Worker

Other than Permanent Worker

Permanent Employees

Other than Permanent Employees

The Company has always believed in open and
transparent communication. Employees are encouraged
to share their concerns with their HODs, HR or the
members of the Senior Leadership Team. In addition,
new employees are sensitised on Code of Conduct
principles, which also forms part of the employee
induction programme. The Company have put
Complaint Box at every plant locations and office and
maintain Complaint Register to redress grievances of
employees and workers. The company has in place
prevention of sexual harassment at the workplace
policy and Whistle blower policy applicable to all
employees.

7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or Unions recognised by the listed

entity:

The Company does not have any employee associations. The Company, however, recognizes the

right to freedom of association.
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Current FY Previous FY
Total No. of %SB Total No. of %
employees employee:s / /A) | employees | employees/ }) C
/workers  in Worker.s m / workersin | workers in
respective respective respective | respective
category(A) category, who category(C) | category, who
are part of are part of
aSSOC.IatIOI‘l(S)O association(s)
1 Union(B) or Union (D)
Total - - = - -
Permanent
Employees
Male - - I - -
Female - - - - - -
Total - - I - -
Permanent
Workers
Male - - = - -
Female - - - - - -

8. Details of training given to employees and workers:

The Company provides regular trainings on Health & Safety to all its employees. The Company
aims to provide highest quality training and minimizing workplace accidents, without focusing
upon the number of hours spent in the training.

Category | FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Total | On health and | On skills | Total | On health and | On skills
(A) safety upgradation | (D) safety upgradation
measures measures
No. %B/A | No. | %C/A No. (E) | %E/D | No. (F) | %F/D
(B) ©
Employees
Male 147 88 60 % 88 60 % 104 73| 70% 731 70%
Female 2 2| 100% 2| 100% 3 3| 100% 3| 100%
Total 149 90 60% 90 60% 107 76 | 71% 76 | 71%
Workers
Male 106 74 70% 74 70% 97 58 | 60% 58| 60%
Female 0 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0] 0.0% 0] 0.0%
Total 106 74 70% 74 70% 97 58 | 60% 58 | 60%
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9. Details of Performance and career development reviews of employees and workers 100% of

MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED

eligible employees have received performance and career development reviews.

FY 2021-2022 FY 2020-2021
Current Financial Year Previous Financial Year
Category
Total Total
No. (B % (B/A No. (E %
A B) |%®/mA) | (E) | % (/D)
Employee
Male 147 147 100% 104 104 100%
Female 2 2 100% 3 3 100%
Total 149 149 100% 107 107 100%
Workers
Male 106 106 100% 97 97 100%
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 106 106 100% 97 97 100%

All employees of the Company undergo an appraisal process as determined by the Company. The
appraisal process is based on criteria on the basis of timely and systematic working, accountability,
additional contribution to work, contribution to the overall performance of the Company.

10. Health and safety management system:
a. Whether an occupational health and safety management system has been implemented by
the entity? (Yes/ No). If yes, the coverage such system?

Yes, safety is a core value over which no business objective can have a higher priority The Safety
& Health Management system covers activities across all manufacturing locations, offices and
supply chain partners and ensures the protection of environment, health & safety of its employees,
contractors, visitors and all other relevant stakeholders.

The Company has also adopted Environment, Health & Safety Policy which can be accessed on its
website at: https:/ /www.mbapl.com

b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and
non-routine basis by the entity?
The Company provides Regular site review, inspections and audits to assess safety preparedness,
Regular mock drills for fire as well as medical emergencies. Employee engagement campaigns on
health & safety topics such as fire safety, road safety, emergency evacuation to managing the
hazards and identifying its risks.

c. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove
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themselves from such risks. (Y/N)

Yes. The process is available at all the locations. The processes include direct interaction with safety
officer, suggestion box, approaching the Health and Safety Team, Regular site review, inspections
and audits to assess safety preparedness, Regular mock drills for fire as well as medical
emergencies. Employee engagement campaigns on health & safety topics such as fire safety, road
safety, emergency evacuation.

d. Do the employees/ worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare

services? (Yes/ No)

Yes. All employees are covered under the Group Personal Accident Policy.

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:

Safety Incident/Number Category Current Previous
FinancialYear | FinancialYear

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (LTIFR) | Employees | - -

(per one million-person hours worked) Workers - -

Total recordable work-related injuries Employees | - -
Workers - -

No. of fatalities Employees |- -
Workers - -

High consequence work-related injury or | Employees | - -

ill-health (excludingfatalities)
Workers - -

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

The Company has in place a mechanism for identification of fire hazards, preparation of

action plan for control system and plans to mitigate or eliminate hazards.

Some of the mitigation measures to prevent or mitigate significant occupational health &

safety impacts include -

* Provision and maintenance of fire detection, alarm and suppression systems.

*Provisions of adequate Ventilations, Lighting, Machine Guards and Exhaust Systems at

workplace;

*Provisions of Drinking Water, Rest Rooms and establishment of First Aid Centre;

* Awareness created through display of signage, precautionary boards and trainings on Fire,

Safety, Health & Firs Aid.

* Regular site review, inspections and audits to assess safety preparedness.

* Regular mock drills for fire as well as medical emergencies.

* Employee engagement campaigns on health & safety topics such as fire safety, road safety,
emergency evacuation.

13. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

66



< MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED

OSTWAL

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Filed Pending Remarks | Filed Pending Remarks

during resolution during | resolution

the year | at the end theyear | at the end

of year of year

Working Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Conditions
Health & | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Safety

14. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by
_ entity or statutory authorities or third parties)
Health and safety practices | 100% of plants and offices were assessed by entity

Working Conditions through internal audits.

15. Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents
(if any) and on significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices
and working conditions.

The following corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents:
e Organized Safety training programs to create the awareness on safety;
e Employees have been advised to wear the PPE's in the workplace;
e Work instructions & Safe Work Practices were made & readily available.

PRINCIPLE 4: BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT THE INTERESTS OF AND BE
RESPONSIVE TO ALL ITS STAKEHOLDERS

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

Any individual or group of individuals that adds value to the business of the Company or
who are impacted by us are identified as a core stakeholder of the Company.

The Company has identified suppliers, customers, employees, local community and investors
as its key stakeholders.

2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of
engagement with each stakeholder group.
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Stakeholder | Whether Channels of Frequency of Purpose and Scope
Group Identified Communication Engagement Of Engagement
as Vulnerable (Email, SMS, (Annually/Half | Including Key topics
& Marginalized | Newspaper, Yearly/Quarterly| And concerns raised
Group (Yes/No) | Pamphlets, /Others-Please | during such
Advertisement Specify) engagement
Community
Meetings, Notice
Board) Other
Customers | No Website, social | As and Understanding
media, when client, Customer
Conferences required satisfaction,
events, Phone industry and
calls, emails. business challenges
Investors/ | No Email, Quarterly and | To inform on how
Shareholders Website, Analysts/ | need based the company is
Investor Calls, currently doing and
Annual what it plans to do in
General Meetings, near term future.
releases Understanding
Newspaper shareholder
advertisements expectations
Employees | No Direct, email, team | Regular Performance
meetings, video appraisal,
conferences; audio Career growth, Skill
conference calls development
trainings, Fair
remuneration, safe
workplace,
employee
satisfaction.
Suppliers No Email, Phone calls, | As and Business/Project
Advertisements, when required related
website and
social media
Governmen | No Advertisements, As and Discussions with
ts & website and social | when required | regard to various
Regulatory media, Phone calls, regulations,
Authorities emails and amendments,
meetings inspections,
approvals
and assessments.
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Communitie | No Meetings, As and Monitoring &

S Training and when required implementing  the
workshops CSR projects
Advertisements, and activities
website and
social media,
Complaints and
grievance

mechanism
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PRINCIPLE 5 BUSINESSES SHOULD RESPECT AND PROMOTE HUMAN RIGHTS

Essential Indicators

1. Employees and workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and
policy(ies) of the entity, in the following format:

Category FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Total (A) | No. % (B/A) | Total (C) | No. % (D/C)
employee’ employee’s
sworkers workers
covered (B) covered (D)
Employees
Permanent 149 104 70 % 107 64 60 %
Other permanent 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
than
Total Employees 149 104 70 % 107, 64 60 %
Workers
Permanent 106 69 65 % 97 63 65 %
Other permanent 390 250 64 % 0 0 0 %
than
Total Workers 496 319 64 % 97 63 65 %
2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:
Category FY (2021-22) PY (2020-21)
Total Equal to More than Total Equal to More than
(A) Minimum Minimum (D) Minimum | Minimum
Wage Wage Wage Wage
No. % (B | No. % (C No. |[% (E |No. | % (F
®B) [/A) [(© /A) (E) |[/D) [(F) [/D)
Employees
Permanent
Male 147 21 14% | 126 86% | 104 11 11% | 93 89%
Female 2 1 50% |1 50% | 3 2 67% | 1 33%
Other - - - - - - - - - -
Other than
Permanent
Male - - - - - - - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -
Workers
Permanent
Male 106 24 23% | 82 77% | 97 23 24% | 74 76%
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Female -

Other -

Other than
Permanent

Male -

Female -

Other -

3. Details of remuneration/salary/wages, in the following format

Male Female
Number Median Number | Median
remuneration/ remuneration/
salary/ wages of salary/ wages of
respective category respective category
Board of Directors 7 0 0
(BOD)
Key Managerial 2 87897 30367
Personnel
Employees other than 145 26274 11127,
BOD and KMP
Workers 106, 19670 0

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual/ Committee) responsible for addressing human rights
impacts or issues caused or contributed to by the business? (Yes/No)

Yes, Human rights is a sensitive issue and Company has zero tolerance to Human Rights
violation. Human Rights is one of the Key Focus area for the Organisation. For any Human Rights
violation, whenever reported, the employees can raise their concerns related to human rights

issues with the HR team.

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances related to human rights issues.

For any grievances on human rights issues, the employees can reach out to Human Resources
team. The grievances are duly addressed and corrective measures deemed fit are taken.
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6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Filed | Pending Pending
durin | resoluti | Remarks| Filed resolution at | Remarks
g the | onat the during | the
year |end of the end of year
year year

Sexual Harassment - - - - - -

Discrimination atworkplace - - - - - -

Child Labour - - - - - _

Forced Labour - - - - - -
Involuntary Labour
Wages - - - - - -

Other human - - - - - -
Rights relatedissues

7. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and
harassment cases.

The Company has in place an appropriate Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace in accordance with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, to prevent sexual harassment of its employees.
The company is intolerant to any discrimination and harassment related issues and takes timely
measures to address the grievance. We sensitize the employees on prevention of sexual harassment
at workplaces through internal communications and training programmes.

8. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts?

Yes, the business agreements and contracts do include Company’s expectations to promote
sustainability, fair competition and respect for human rights.

9. Assessments for the year:

% of your plants and offices that were
assessed (by entity or statutory
authorities or third parties)

Child labour 100 % Our Company internally
monitors compliance for all relevant
laws and policies pertaining to these
Sexual harassment issues. There have been no observations

Forced/involuntary labour
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Discrimination at workplace by local statutory / third parties in

Wages India in FY 2022.
Others

10. Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks /

concerns arising from the assessments at Question 9 above.

There were no significant risks or concerns.
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PRINCIPLE 6: BUSINESS SHOULD RESPECT AND MAKE EFFORTS TO PROTECT AND
RESTORE THE ENVIRONMENT

Essential Indicators

1. Details of total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the
following format:

(in GIGA Joules)

Parameter FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

(Current Financial Year) | (Previous Financial Year)
Total electricity consumption (A) 75199 71 3424712
Total fuel consumption (B) 126044.95 62844.80
Energy consumption through 0.00 0.00

other sources (C)

Total energy consumption

(A+B+C) 201244.66 97091.92
Energy intensity per rupee ofturnover

(Total energy consumption/turnover in 4.0946 5.2280
Lakhs)

Energy intensity (optional) - Per Unit 0.4659 0.3086

of Production Volume

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an
externalagency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

No

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as designated consumers (DCs) under the
Performance, Achieve and Trade (PAT) Scheme of the Government of India? (Y/N) If yes,
disclose whether targets set under the PAT scheme have been achieved. In case targetshave not
been achieved, provide the remedial action taken, if any.

No

3. Provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:

Parameter FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)
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(i) Surface water 193078.16 11988.75
(ii) Groundwater 190488.10 226346.50
(iii) Third party water 0.00 0.00
(iv) Seawater / desalinated water 0.00 0.00
(v) Others 0.00 0.00
Total volume of water withdrawal 383566.26 738335.25
(in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + V) ' '
Total volume of water consumption 383566.26 238335.25
(in kilolitres)
Water intensity per rupee of 7 8042 4.8492
turnover (Water consumed / turnover)
Water intensity (optional) - Per unit

0.8880 0.7575

of production volume

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by

an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

No

4. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details

of its coverage and implementation.

Yes, Company has achieved zero liquid discharge across all the campuses. Madhya Bharat

Agro Products Limited optimizes water consumption through conservation, sewage treatment

and reuse, and rainwater harvesting. All new campuses have been designed for 100% treatment

and recycling of sewage, and rainwater harvesting.

Please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the

following format:
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(in MT)
Parameter Please specifyunit FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
NOx - L i
SOx - . _
Particulate matter mg/NM3 9.25 MT -
(PM)
Persistent organic - - _
pollutants (POP)
Volatile organic L L I
compounds (VOC)
Hazardous air L L _
pollutants (HAP)
Others -  please - . I
Specity HF

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by

an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

No

6.

Provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions) & its

intensity, in the following format:

Parameter Unit FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Total Scope 1 emissions Metric tonnes of 18426.29 10173.39
(Break-up of the GHG CO2
into CO2, CH4, N20, equivalent
HFCs, PECs,
SF6, NF3, if available)
Total Scope 2 emissions Metric tonnes of 0 0

(Break-up of the GHG
into CO2, CH4, N20,
HEFCs, PECs,

SF6, NF3, if available)

CO2
equivalent
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Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 0.3749 0.5478
emissions - Per rupee of
turnover
Total Scope 1 and Scope 2 0.0427 0.0323

emission intensity - Per unit
of Production volume(in MT)

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by
an externalagency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

No

7. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If Yes,
then provide details.

No, Company do not have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission but
company is actively endeavouring to reduce of GHG emissions across its operations through
plantations at each location contribute to reduce the GHG emissions.

8. Provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:
(in metric tonnes)

Parameter FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)
Plastic waste (A) 4 i
E-waste (B) i i
Bio-medical waste (C) 4 i
Construction and demolition waste (D) 4 i

Battery waste (E) i i

Radioactive waste (F) 4 i
Other Hazardous waste. Please - -

specify, if any. (G)
Other Non-hazardous wastegenerated (H).

19.27 0.00

- Sulphur Sludge
- Silica - Solid Waste
-  Gypsum

30923.46
54499.89

25666.12
1628.17

Total A+B+ C+D+E+F+ G+H)

85442.62

27294.29

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using

or other recovery operations (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Recycled

173.58

157.48

(ii) Re-used

19.27

0.00

(iii) Other recovery operations

0.00

0.00
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Total | 192.85) 157.48

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal
method (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste
(i) Incineration - -

(ii) Landfilling 33404.25 -
(iiif) Other disposal operations 20930.88 1013.55
Total 54335.13 1013.55

Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by
an external agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency

No

9. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe
the strategy adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicalsin
your products and processes and the practices adopted to manage such wastes.

Our waste management approach is based on the philosophy of Reduce, Reuse and Recycle.
Generated hazardous waste collected and stored in bag in covered shed. Disposal of the same
is being done as per prescribed norms.

10. If the entity has operations/offices in/around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national
parks, wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests,
coastal regulation zones etc.) where environmental approvals / clearances are required,
please specify details in the following format:

Not Applicable. The Company does not have any facilities in and around ecologically
sensitive areas.

11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity based
on applicable laws, in the current financial year:

Name and brief | EIA Date Whether Results Relevant
details of the Notification conducted communicated | web link
project no. by independent | in public

external agency | domain

(Yes/No) (Yes/ No)
NA NA NA NA NA NA

12. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law/ regulations/ guidelines in
India; such as the Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, Air (Prevention and
Control of Pollution) Act, Environment protection act and rules thereunder (Y/N). If not,

78



< MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED

OSTWAL

provide details of all such non-compliances, in the following format:

Yes. We are compliant with the applicable environmental law / regulations / guidelines in
India.
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PRINCIPLE 7: BUSINESSES, WHEN ENGAGING IN INFLUENCING PUBLIC AND

REGULATORY POLICY, SHOULD DO SO IN A MANNER THAT IS RESPONSIBLE AND
TRANSPARENT.

Essential Indicators
1. a. Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers/associations.
The Company has taken membership with 1 (one) trade and industry chambers/associations.

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers/ associations (determined based on thetotal
members of such body) the entity is a member of/ affiliated to.

S. No.Name of the trade and industry chambers/ Reach of trade and industry
associations chambers/ associations
(State/National)
1. [Fertilizer Association of India National

2. Provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti-
competitive conduct by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

Not Applicable.

PRINCIPLE 8: BUSINESS SHOULD PROMOTE INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND EQUITABLE
DEVELOPMENT:

Essential Indicators

1. Details of Social Impact Assessments (SIA) of projects undertaken by the entity based
on applicable laws, in the current financial year.

Name and brief | SIA Date Whether Results Relevant
details of the Notification conducted communicated | web link
project no. by independent | in public

external agency | domain

(Yes/No) (Yes/ No)
NA NA NA NA NA NA

2. Provide information on project(s) for which ongoing Rehabilitation and Resettlement
(R&R) is being undertaken by your entity, in the following format:

Not Applicable
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3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

The Company has internal grievance redressal mechanism in place to address the grievance
raised by the stakeholders. The Board reviews the status of the grievance raised, pending,

disposed.
4. Percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Directly sourced from MSMEs/ small | 0.01% 2.57%

producers

Sourced directly from within the district | 35% 37.5 %

and neighbouring districts input material of the | input material of the
company directly | company directly
sourced from within | sourced from within
the district and | the district and
neighbouring districts | neighbouring districts
to the extent possible. | to the extent possible.

PRINCIPLE 9: BUSINESSES SHOULD ENGAGE WITH AND PROVIDE VALUE TO
THEIR CUSTOMERS IN A RESPONSIBLE MANNER.

Essential Indicators

1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and

feedback.

The Company has Customer Care number, Email, Website to enable customers to log any
complaints or feedbacks. Customer can also provide feedback through Social Media.

2. Turnover of products and/ services as a percentage of turnover from all products/service

that carry information about:

As a Percentage
to total turnover
Environmental and Social Parameters relevant to the product 0
(Energy Used, Water Consumed, No. of People involved in
production, etc.)
Safe and Responsible Usage 100
Recycling and/or safe disposal 100

3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:

FY 2021-22

FY 2020-21

Received | Pending

| Remarks

Received | Pending | Remarks
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during resolution during resolutio
theyear |at end of theyear |n at end
year of year
Data privacy
Advertising

Place

Date

Cyber-security
We do not have any consumer complaints in respect of data privacy,

Delivery of | advertising, cybersecurity, delivery of essential services, restrictive
essential trade practices, unfair trade practices.
services

Restrictive
Trade
Practices

Unfair Trade
Practices

Other

Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:

There have been no instances of product recall (voluntary or forced) on account of safety issues
during the financial year 2021-22.

. Does the entity have a framework/ policy on cyber security and risks related to data

privacy? (Yes/No) If available, provide a web-link of the policy.

Yes. The Company has under the Code of Conduct, included the Cyber security, including
data and information security which includes the Cyber Security Risk. The Code of Conduct
is available on www.mbapl.com

Provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway on issues relating to
advertising, and delivery of essential services; cyber security and data privacy of
customers; re-occurrence of instances of product recalls; penalty / action taken by
regulatory authorities on safety of products / services.

None
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
(Pankaj Ostwal) (Sourabh Gupta)
Bhilwara Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director
&
Chief Financial Officer
30.05.2022 DIN 02586806 DIN 07177647
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ANNEXURE II

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2021-2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in my/our opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time; (Not Applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
and (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting member’s views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Sourabh Bapna & Associates
Practicing Company Secretary

Sd/-
(Sourabh Bapna)
Proprietor
C.P. No. 19968
M. No. A51505

UDIN:- A051505D000459814

Date: 30.05.2022
Place: Bhilwara
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ANNEXURE ‘IIT’

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Details Pertaining to Remuneration as Required Under Section 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 Read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each
director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the company for the financial
year.

1. Mr. Pankaj Ostwal: 55.35
2. Mr. Sourabh Gupta: 4.10

(i) The  percentage increase in
remuneration of each director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in
the financial year.

1. Pankaj Ostwal (Managing Director): 46.93%
2. Sourabh Gupta (Whole Time Director &: 26.42%
Chief Financial Officer)

(iii)The percentage Increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the financial
year

In the Financial Year, there was an Increase of
35.32 % in the median remuneration of Employees.

(iv) The number of permanent employees
on the rolls of company.

293 Employee

(v) Average percentage increase already
made in the salaries of employees other than
the managerial personnel in the last financial
year and its comparison with the percentage
increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in

the managerial remuneration.

Average increase in remuneration of employees
other than the Managerial Personnel: 87.26%

Average increase in remuneration of Managerial
Personnel: 24.19%

(vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as
per the remuneration policy of the
company.

The company affirmed that the remuneration is as
per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other
Employees of the Company, formulated pursuant
to the provisions of section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013.
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Details of the employees of the Company - Pursuant to Section 197 (Rule 5) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

(i) Employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in
the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh rupees:

Name | Designati | Remuneration | Qualifications Date Last Numb | Relation
& Age | on p-a. (Rs. and of employment |erof |with
in Crore) experience | commencement held equity | Director

of employmen by employee | share | or
and nature o beforejoining | held | Manager
employment

Pankaj | Managing | 1.44 C.A., B.Com. | 24/02/2009 N.A. 201015| Brother
Ostwal | Director 22 Years of

44 Years Praveen
Ostwal,
Director
and Son
of Sh.
Mahend
ra
Kumar
Ostwal,
Chairma
n cum
Director

(i) Employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that
year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight lakhs and fifty thousand rupees
per month: NA

(iii) Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof receiving remuneration in excess of the
amount drawn by Managing Director or whole-time director or manager: NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Date 30.05.2022 (Pankaj Ostwal) (Sourabh Gupta)
Place Bhilwara (Raj) Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director
&

Chief Financial Officer
DIN 02586806 DIN 07177647
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ANNEXURE IV

DETAIL OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information pursuant to section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8 of
(Companies (Account) Rule, 2014) and forming part of the Director’s Report for the year ended 315t
March 2022.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(@)The Company takes adequate steps for the conservation of energy at every stage of production
and remains conscious about conserving energy resources.

(b)The Company has made adequate investment on various measures for conservation of energy
which has resulted in optimizing energy consumption and saving in cost.

(c)The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Approx. Rs. 1.38 Crore

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i)Efforts made towards technology absorption:

The Company is continuously endeavoring to upgrade its technology from time to time in all
aspects through in-house R&D primarily aiming at reduction of cost of production and improving
the quality of the product. The Company has strengthened the infrastructure for R & D and carried
out improvement in quality systems. This has resulted into consistency in achieving standard
quality parameters as per Government of India. The Company will continue to thrust on R & D
activities of the Company.

(ii)The benefits derived therefrom:

The Company could successfully reduce the cost of production, by using the in house developed
alternative raw materials, power consumption and improving technical efficiencies and
productivity.

(iii)In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) -

(a) The details of technology imported; None

(b) The year of import; None

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed; None

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; None
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The figure of earnings and expenditure in foreign currency during the year is as under:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021

Foreign Currency Earning - -

Foreign Currency outgo 5303.54 528.66

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- sd/-
Date 30.05.2022 (Pankaj Ostwal) (Sourabh Gupta)
Place Bhilwara (Raj) Managing Director = Whole Time Director
&

Chief Financial Officer
DIN 02586806 DIN 07177647
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ANNEXURE V

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
(Pursuant to clause (g) of sub-section (3) of section 134 & section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013)

S. Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
No. 2022 2021
(A) | Loan Given NIL NIL
(B) | Investment made NIL NIL
(C) | Guarantee given NIL NIL

Date  30.05.2022
Place Bhilwara (Raj)
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Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director
&

Chief Financial Officer
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ANNEXURE VI

FORM NO. - AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under fourth proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis -N.A.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: -

Limited

exercise significant influence

Name(s) of the related party Nature of relationship Duration | Salient Amount (In
of contract | terms Lakh)

Purchases of Material

Krishana Phoschem Ltd Interested Director FY 21-22 See note-1 7472.62

Ostwal Phoschem India | Holding Company FY 21-22 See note-1 2394 .83

Limited

Seasons International Private | enterprises over which | FY 21-22 See note-1 347.51

imited exercise significant influence

Sale of Material

Krishana Phoschem Ltd Interested Director FY 21-22 See note-1 3105.12

Ostwal  Phoschem (India) | Holding Company FY 21-22 | See note-1 992.68

Limited

Shri Ganpati Fertilizer Limited | Interested Director FY 21-22 | See note-1 961.20

Rent Paid

Ostwal Phoschem India | Holding Company FY 21-22 See note-1 0.12

Limited

Loan Taken

Krishana Phoschem Limited Interested Director FY 21-22 See note-1 605.00

Ostwal Phoschem India | Holding Company FY 21-22 See note-1 3443.00

Limited

Seasons International Private | enterprises over which | FY 21-22 See note-1 150.00
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Interest Paid
Krishana Phoschem Limited Interested Director FY 21-22 See note-1 95.14
Ostwal Phoschem India | Holding Company FY 21-22 See note-1 42.64
Limited
Seasons International Private | enterprises over which | FY 21-22 See note-1 0.77

Limited

exercise significant influence

Note:

1. Terms of the contract conform to the prevailing market rates and all the care has been taken
to ensure reasonability of prices compare to the prevailing rates in the market, better
quality products and timely supply.

2. Appropriate approvals have been taken for related party transactions.

3. Advance paid have been adjusted against billing, wherever applicable.

Place Bhilwara (Raj)

Date  30.05.2022

92

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
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Managing Director = Whole Time Director
&
Chief Financial Officer
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ANNEXURE VII

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2021-22

1. Corporate Governance Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance has been an integral part of the way we are doing our business. As a good
corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on conscience, openness,
fairness, professionalism and accountability in building confidence of its various stakeholders in it
thereby paving the way for its long-term success. The Company believes that good Corporate
Governance emerges from the application of the best and sound management practices and compliance
with the laws coupled with adherence to the highest standards of transparency and business ethics.

The Company believes that sound ethical practices, transparency in operations and timely disclosures go
a long way in enhancing long-term shareholders’ value while safeguarding the interest of all the
stakeholders. It is this conviction that has led the Company to make strong corporate governance values
intrinsic to all its operations. The Company is led by Board, which includes independent directors. The
Board provides strong oversight and strategic counsel. The Company has established systems and
procedures to ensure that the Board of the Company is well-informed and well-equipped to fulfill its
oversight responsibilities and to provide management the strategic direction it needs. In terms of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the details of compliances, are as follows:-

2. Board of Directors

Composition of the Board

As on March 31, 2022, the Company’s Board comprised of 8 (Eight) Directors viz., 3(Three) Independent
Non-Executive Directors, 1 (One) Women Independent Non-Executive Directors, 1 (One) Promoter and
Managing Director, 1 (One) Whole time Director & CFO, and 2 (Two) Promoter and Non-Executive
Director. The Chairman of the Board is also Promoter Non - Executive Director.

Details of Board of Director’s category, attendance at the Board Meetings and last Annual
General Meeting (AGM), number of other Directorships and Committee positions as on 31st
March, 2022 are given below:

Sr. | Name of | Category/ No. of No. of Whether | No. of No. of Committee | No. of
No. | the Status of Board Board Attended| Directorships | positions held in | Equity
Director | Directorship | Meetings | Meetings | AGM in other Public| Public Shares
during attended Limited Limited held in
year Companies Companies the
i Company
Chairman | Member
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1 Pankaj Managing 11 11 Yes 1. Ostwal - 3 201015
Ostwal Director Phoschem
(India) Limited
(Non-Executive
Director)
2. Krishana
Phoschem
Limited (Non-
Executive
Director)
3. Shri Ganpati
Fertilizers
Limited
(Executive
Director)
2 Sourabh Whole Time 11 11 Yes - - - -
Gupta Director and
Chief
Financial
Officer
3 Praveen Non- 11 11 Yes 1. Ostwal - 2 332700
Ostwal Executive Phoschem
Director (India)
Limited (Non-
Executive
Director)
2. Krishana
Phoschem
Limited
(Managing
Director)
4 Mahendra | Chairman 11 11 Yes 1. Ostwal - 1 8500
Kumar cum Phoschem
Ostwal Non- (India)
Executive Limited
Director (Managing
Director)
2. Krishana
Phoschem
Limited (Non-
Executive
Director)
5 Arvind Non- 11 11 Yes - 2 3 12000
Kothari Executive
Independent
Director
6 Paras Mal | Non- 11 11 Yes - - 2 -
Surana Executive
Independent
Director
7 Shruti Woman Non- | 11 11 Yes - - - 50
Babel Executive
Independent
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Director

8 Bheru Lal | Independent |11 11 No 1. Ostwal 2 3 51450
Ostwal Non- Phoschem
Executive (India)
Director Limited (Non-
Executive
Independent
Director)

2. Krishana
Phoschem
Limited (Non-
Executive
Independent
Director)

Number of Board Meetings

The Board of Directors duly met 11 (Eleven) times on 29th April 2021, 10t June 2021, 15t June
2021, 29t July 2021, 07th August 2021, 27th August 2021, 9th November 2021, 22nd November
2021, 01t December 2021, 04th February 2022 and 28t March 2022. The maximum time gap
between any two consecutive board meetings was less than 120 days.

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

Sh. Pankaj Ostwal, Managing Director on the Board of Directors is the Brother of Sh. Praveen
Ostwal, Non-Executive Director. Sh. Pankaj Ostwal, Managing Director and Sh. Praveen
Ostwal, Non-Executive Director are the Son of Sh. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal, Chairman cum
Non-Executive Director in the Company.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors

Sh. Praveen Ostwal, who holds 332700 Equity Shares, Sh. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal who
holds 8500 Equity Shares, Sh. Bheru Lal Ostwal who holds 51450 Equity Shares, Sh. Arvind
Kothari who holds 12000 Equity Shares and Smt. Shurti Babel holds 50 Equity Shares in the
Company.

Web link where details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors
is disclosed:

All Independent Directors are familiarized with the Company and their roles, rights,
responsibilities, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the
Company, etc. from time to time.

The details regarding Independent Directors” Familiarization Programmes are given on the
website of the Company and can be accessed at http://mbapl.com/pdf/Familizaration-
Programmes-for-Independent-Directors.pdf.

Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors
During the reporting financial year, a separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company, was held on 04th February, 2022, at the Registered Office of the Company at 5-O-
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21, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara 311001, whereat the following items as
enumerated under Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 were discussed:

a) Review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.

b) Review of performance of the Chairperson of the Company.

c) Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the
Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably perform their duties.

List of skills/expertise/competencies required to function the business effectively:

The following list of core skills/ expertise/ competencies are identified by the Board of
Directors as required in the context of Business(es) and sector(s) for it to function effectively
and those actually available with the Board of Directors.

Qualification & Knowledge: Directors should be financially literate and have a sound
understanding of business strategy, corporate governance and board operations.

Integrity and Judgment: Directors should have the highest level of integrity, ethical
character and the ability to exercise sound business judgment on a broad range of issues
consistent with the Company’s values.

Experience and Accomplishments: Directors should have significant experience and proven
Superior performance in professional endeavors whether this experience is in business,
government, and academic or with non-profit organizations.

Independence: Directors who are not current or former management should meet the spirit
as well as the letter of the applicable independence standards. In addition, all Directors
should be independent in their thought and judgment so that they represent the long-term
interests of all shareholders of the Company.

Diversity: Directors should be capable of representing the multi-cultural nature of our global
corporation with consideration being given to a diverse board in terms of gender and ethnic
membership. In addition, the Committee shall take into account diversity in professional
experience, skills and background.

Board Interaction: Directors should value board and team performance over individual
performance, demonstrate respect for others and facilitate superior board performance.
Directors should be willing and able to devote the time required to become familiar with
Company’s business and to be actively involved in the Board and its decision-making.

Skills: Directors should have expertise in one or more of the areas such as accounting and

finance, technology, management, international business, compensation, legal, HR,
corporate governance, strategy, industry knowledge and general business matters.
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Confirmation pertaining to independent directors of the company:

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Arvind Kothari, Mr. Paras Mal
Surana, Mr. Bheru Lal Ostwal, Non-Executive Independent Directors and Shruti Babel,
Woman Non- Executive Independent Director are Independent from the management and
complies with the criteria of Independent Director as placed in Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the
Companies Act, 2013.

Reasons for the resignation of an independent director: Not applicable

7. Audit Committee

(a)Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the provisions of Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The role of the Audit Committee is to provide oversight over the
accounting systems, financial reporting and internal controls of the Company.

The powers and role of the Audit Committee are as set out in the Listing Agreement and
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson:

The Audit Committee comprises 3 (Three) Directors as members. All members are
financially literate and possess sound knowledge of accounts, finance and audit matters. The
Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee. The Internal
Auditors of the Company attend the Meetings of the Audit Committee on invitation of the
Chairman of the Committee. The Composition of Audit Committee of the Company, is given

below:
Sr. No| Name Name Designation Position in Committee
1. Shri Arvind Kothari Non-Executive-Independent | Chairman
Director
2. Shri Pankaj Ostwal Managing Director Member
3. Shri Bheru Lal Ostwal Non-Executive-Independent | Member
Director

(c) Meetings and attendance during the year:

Four Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year ended March 31, 2022. The
maximum time gap between any of the two meetings was not more than one hundred and
twenty days.

The dates on which the Audit Committee meetings held are 15th June 2021, 29th July 2021, 9th
November 2021, and 04t February 2022.
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Details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of Director Designation Number of Meetings
Held Attended
Arvind Kothari Chairman 4 4
Pankaj Ostwal Member 4 4
Bheru Lal Ostwal Member 4 4

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(a)Brief description of terms of reference:

Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance;

Formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration
for directors, KMPs and other employees;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board
of directors;
Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report performance evaluation of independent directors;

Determine our Company’s policy on specific remuneration package for the Managing
Director / Executive Director including pension rights;

Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, bonuses, notice period, severance fees and
increment of Executive Directors;

Define and implement the Performance Linked Incentive Scheme (including ESOP of the
Company) and evaluate the performance and determine the amount of incentive of the
Executive Directors for that purpose.

Decide the amount of Commission payable to the Whole time Directors;

Review and suggest revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive Directors
keeping in view the performance of the Company, standards prevailing in the industry,
statutory guidelines etc. and

To formulate and administer the Employee Stock Option Scheme.
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(b) Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board with three
Independent Directors. The Chairman of this Committee is Independent Director.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as under: -

Sr. | Name Designation Position in Committee
No.
1. Bheru Lal Ostwal Non-Executive-Independent Chairman
Director
2. Arvind Kothari Non-Executive-Independent Member
Director
3. Paras Mal Surana Non-Executive-Independent Member
Director

(c) Meetings and attendance during the year:
During the year, 2 Committee Meetings were held on 29t April 2021 and 27th August 2021.

Details of the Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Name of Director Designation Number of Meetings
Held | Attended
Bheru Lal Ostwal Chairman 2 2
Arvind Kothari Member 2 2
Paras Mal Surana Member 2 2

(d) Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board laid out the evaluation criteria
for performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and all the individual directors, in
adherence of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
performance evaluation for the financial year was carried out in accordance with the criteria
aid out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The evaluation of all directors
(including Independent Directors) was done by the entire Board of Directors (excluding the
Director being evaluated).

5. Remuneration of director

(@) All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive director’s visa- vis
Company: None
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(b) Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors:

The Company has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other Employees; regulated by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board. The Policy is also available on the website of the Company
www.mbapl.com in the ‘Investor Handbook” section in ‘Investor Relation’.

6. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson:

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee was constituted by the Board with two Independent
Directors and one executive Director. The Chairman of this Committee is Independent
Director. During the year the 4 Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings were held on
15t June 2021, 29t July 2021, 09t November 2021 and 04 February 2022. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

The constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises the following:

Sr. Name Designation Position in Committee
No.
1. Arvind Kothari Non-Executive-Independent Chairman
Director
2. Pankaj Ostwal Managing director Member
3. Bheru Lal Ostwal Non-Executive-Independent Member
Director

(a) Name of Non-Executive Director heading the Committee:
Shri Arvind Kothari, Non-Executive Independent Director was appointed as the Chairman
of the Stakeholders Relationship / Grievance Redressal Committee.

(b) Name and designation of Compliance officer: Ms. Pallavi Sukhwal, Company Secretary

(c) A Summary of complaints received and resolved by the Company during the period
under review is given below:

No. of Investor Complaints | No. of Investor Complaints | No. of Investor Complaints
received disposed those remaining unresolved

0 0 0

7. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In compliance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee. The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as at
March 31, 2022 is as under:
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Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship
Arvind Kothari Chairman Non-Executive
Independent Director
Paras Mal Surana Member Non-Executive
Independent Director
Bheru Lal Ostwal Member Non-Executive-
Independent Director

8. General Body Meetings

Annual General Meeting (“AGM"):
Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings:

AGM | Year Ended Venue Date Time
24th | March 31,2021 | Meeting conducted through two-way | 27th September | 12:30 P.M.
Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other | 2021
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”)
pursuant to the MCA Circular
23+ | March 31, 2020 | Meeting conducted through two-way | 25th 11:30 A.M.
Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other | September
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 2020
pursuant to the MCA Circular
22nd | March 31, 2019 | Hotel Kanchi Resorts, Pur Road, 26th 04:00 P.M.
Bhilwara (Raj) 311001 September
2019

Extraordinary General Meeting:
No extraordinary general meeting of the members was held during FY 2022.

Special Resolutions passed in previous three Annual General Meetings
Following Special resolutions were passed by the Company during the last three Annual
General Meetings (AGM) of the Company:

Date

Particulars

27th September 2021

Financial Officer.

1. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, to approve and Re appointment of Mr.
Sourabh Gupta as Whole Time Director cum Chief

2. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification, to approve and
managerial remuneration limit.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without

increase the overall
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modification, to approve and revision of remuneration of
Mr. Pankaj Ostwal as Managing Director of the Company.

. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification, to approve and Payment of salary or
Commission to Non-Executive Directors of the Company

26th September, 2020

. No Special Resolutions were passed

26th September, 2019

. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification, to appoint Sh. Mahendra Kumar Ostwal as a
Non-Executive Director.

. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification, to appoint Sh. Bheru Lal Ostwal as a Non-
Executive Independent Director.

. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification(s), to re-appoint Mr. Arvind Kothari as an
Independent Director of the Company for the second term
of five (5) consecutive years

. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification(s), to appoint Mr. Paras Mal Surana as an
Independent Director of the Company for the five (5)
consecutive years

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), to Increase in Borrowing Powers of the
Company.

. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without

modification(s), to Creation of Charge on Movable and
Immovable properties of the Company, both present and
future.

Resolution proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot
None of Business proposed to be transacted in the ensuring Annual General Meeting
required the passing of a resolution by way of postal ballot.

9. Means of Communication

1). The unaudited quarterly results are announced within forty-five days from the close of the
quarter and the Audited results are announced within sixty days from the close of the financial
year. The financial results are immediately sent to the Stock Exchanges and also uploaded on
the website of the Company -www.mbapl.com.

2). The Company has normally published in two newspapers viz. The Financial Express
(English Edition) and Nafa Nuksan (Hindi Edition).

3). The Company’s website, www.mbapl.com provides comprehensive information to the

Shareholders.
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4). The Company has display the news release and Investor Presentations on Company’s
website, www.mbapl.com

10. General Shareholders Information

Sr. | Salient Items of Interest Particulars
No.
1. | Annual General Meeting
Date and Day On Monday, September 26, 2022.
Time 03.30 PM
Venue/Mode Meeting conducted through Video Conference
(“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”)
2. Financial Year April 15t 2021 to March 31st, 2022
3. | Dividend Payment Date Dividend will be paid within 30 days of the approval
of the same in the Annual General Meeting
4. | Listing on Stock Exchanges The Company’s equity shares are listed on National
Stock Exchange (NSE). The listing fee for the same has
been paid.
5. | Symbol MBAPL
ISIN : INE900L01010
6. Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in Last Financial Year
Month High Low
Apr-2021 100.80 76.00
May-2021 88.00 76.05
June- 2021 129.00 82.05
July-2021 158.95 113.00
Aug-2021 206.75 133.50
Sep-2021 227.40 175.00
Oct-2021 205.95 171.25
Nov- 2021 185.00 164.20
Dec-2021 191.85 158.85
Jan-2022 201.00 169.95
Feb-2022 294.00 186.90
Mar-2022 468.80 296.15
7. Register and Transfer Agents BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building Opp. Vasant
Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri (East) Mumbai
400059 Maharashtra
Tel No.: +91-22-62638200
Fax No.: +91-22-62638299
Email: ipo@bigshareonline.com
Investor Grievance Email:
investor@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com
Contact Person: Mr. Ashok Shetty
SEBI Regn. No.: MB/INR000001385
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8. | Share Transfer System As all the shares are held in dematerialized mode, the
transfer takes place instantaneously between the
transferor, transferee, and the Depository Participant
through electronic debit/credit of the accounts
involved.
9. Distribution of Shareholding (as on 31.03.2022)
Shareholding No. of Percentage of Share Percentage of
Shareholders Shareholder Amount Shareholding
1-5000 4754 93.40 2611150 1.19
5001-10000 108 212 828130 0.38
10001-20000 70 1.38 1081770 0.49
20001-30000 30 0.59 772460 0.35
30001-40000 10 0.20 364230 0.17
40001-50000 19 0.37 885510 0.40
50001-100000 43 0.84 2721880 1.24
100001-9999999999 56 1.10 209802220 95.78
Total 5090 100.00 219067350 100.00
10. | Dematerialization of shares and All the Equity shares i.e. 100 % of the total issued,
Liquidity subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the
Company was held in dematerialized form.
11. | Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or Not Applicable
any Convertible instruments, conversion
date and likely impact on equity
12. | Plant Locations 1. Village Rajoua, Distt: - Sagar (M.P.)
2. Village Sourai Tehsil - Banda, Distt: - Sagar (M.P.)
13. | Address for correspondence 5-O-21, Basement R. C. Vyas Colony,
Bhilwara - 311001,
Rajasthan, India.
Ph. No. 91-1482-237104/ 239091/ 230060
Email: secretarial@mbapl.com;
Website: www.mbapl.com
14. | list of all credit ratings obtained by the | Not Applicable
entity along with any revisions thereto
during the relevant financial year, for all
debt instruments of such entity or any
fixed deposit programme or any scheme
or proposal of the listed entity involving
mobilization of funds, whether in India
or abroad.

11. Other Disclosures

(a) Related Party Transactions:
During the year, none of the transactions with the related parties were in conflict with the
interest of the Company at large.
All the related party transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the accounts of the
Balance Sheet presented in the Annual Report.
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(b) Details of non-compliance:
There were no strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI or Stock Exchanges or any
Statutory Authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets during
the last three years.

(c) Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:
The Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and
employees to report to the management about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of
Company’s Code of Conduct. None of the person of the Company has been denied access
to the Audit Committee.
The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s website viz.
http:/ /mbapl.com/pdf/ Vigil-mechanism.pdf

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements:
The Company has fully complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(e) Web link where policy for determining “material” subsidiaries is disclosed:
The policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is available on the website of the
Company at http:/ /mbapl.com/pdf/Material-Subsdiaries-Policy.pdf

(f) Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed:
The policy on dealing with related party transactions is available on the website of the
Company at http:/ /mbapl.com/pdf/Policy-on-related-party-transactions.pdf

(8) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:
The Company has a proper Risk Management Practices and any risk arising from exposure
to foreign currency for exports and imports is being hedged on a continuous basis. As of
now, the Company does not hedge any commodity price risk.

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutional placement as specified under regulation 32(7A).
Not Applicable

(i) Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary for the Non - Disqualification of
Directors under SEBI (LODR), 2015- Regulation 34(3):
The Company has received Certificate from Practicing Company secretary, M/s. Sourabh
Bapna & Associates, regarding that none of the directors on the Board of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a director of

companies by the Board, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority as
on March 31, 2022.
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(j) Where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the Board
which is mandatorily required in the relevant financial year the same to be disclosed
along with the reason thereof: - Not Applicable

(k) Total fees of all service paid by the listed company and its Subsidiary, on a consolidated
basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of
which the statutory auditor is a part: - Rs. 1, 50,000 per annum.

() Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.
The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,
trainee) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off
during the year 2021-22.

No. of complaints received: Nil
No. of complaints disposed off: Nil

(m) Instance of non-Compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report:
There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance
report.

(n) Disclosure of compliance of regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2)
of regulation 46:
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(o) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting
Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting
policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

(p) CEO and CFO Certification:
The Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company give
annual Compliance Certificate in accordance with Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of
Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
with the Stock Exchange(s). The annual Compliance Certificate given by Chairman and
Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer is attached with this Report an integral part
of the Annual Report.
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(q) Code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel:
The Board had approved a code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel of the company which also incorporates the duties of Independent directors as
laid down in Companies act, 2013. The Code has been displayed on the company’s website
www.mbapl.com. The Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
compliance with the aforesaid code.

(r) Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries
regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance:
The Company taken Certificate from the Practicing Company secretaries, M/s. Sourabh
Bapna & Associates, regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance is
attached with this Report an integral part of the Annual Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Date  30.05.2022 (Pankaj Ostwal) (Sourabh Gupta)
Place Bhilwara (Raj) Managing Director =~ Whole Time Director
&

Chief Financial Officer
DIN 02586806 DIN 07177647
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members,
Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited

We have examined the compliance conditions of corporate governance by Madhya Bharat
Agro Products Limited for the Financial year ended March 31, 2022 as stipulated in Chapter IV
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to
the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of
Corporate Governance, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and was
limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us,

We certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Sourabh Bapna & Associates
Practicing Company Secretary

Sd/-

(Sourabh Bapna)
Proprietor

C.P. No. 19968
M. No. A51505

Date: 30.05.2022
Place: Bhilwara
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CERTIFICATION FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR AND THE CFO

In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, we hereby certify as
under:

a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended
March 31, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violates the Code of Conduct of
the Company.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which
we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We do further certify that there has been:

i. No Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. No Significant changes in accounting policies during the year;

iii. No Instances of fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein,
of the management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal
control system over financial reporting.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Pankaj Ostwal) (Sourabh Gupta)
Place Bhilwara (Raj) Managing Director = Whole Time Director
&

Chief Financial Officer
Date 30.05.2022 DIN 02586806 DIN 07177647
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ANNEXURE VIII

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY SCENARIO AND DEVELOPMENTS

The Company is mainly engaged in the manufacturing of fertilizer and chemical products. Out
of three Primary nutrients viz N, P & K, which every soil requires, we are dealing in N and P
nutrients through SSP and DAP/NPK complex Fertilizer. The winner in this field is those
manufacturers who have integrated facilities and we are one among them. Demand of P has
regularly increased and the same is ever growing with additional land coming under cultivation.
The product being a part of agriculture revolution, received always Govt. support.

India still has capacity less than the demand and the deficit is met by imports. In India Less than
10% of total consumption of Rock by Indian fertilizers manufacturers sourced from Indigenous
suppliers.

OPPORTUNITIES
MBAPL to increase its market share in Fertilizer and chemical industries and thus enhanced its
competitive strength with efficient operations. After commissioning of its DAP/NPK Plant, the
Company has started focusing on strengthening its reach in the existing territories and expansion
in new geographies in India through a concerted brand building approach, which offers an
opportunity to the Company to enhance its sales volumes and market share. Following
opportunities are also available for MBAPL:
> Government’s focus on agriculture and agri reforms.
> Huge demand and import dependency in case of phosphoric fertilizers in the
Country provides an opportunity to Company for expanding its NPK fertilizer
base.
> MBAPL has completed another Backward integration plant to produce in-house
Phosphoric Acid, sulphuric acid for its DAP/NPK/Complex Fertilizer.
» Growing area under micro irrigation and demand for nutrient based fertiliser.
> Enhanced focus on digital platform for better connectivity with end consumers via
social media and mobile applications.

THREATS

» The demand variation due to change in monsoon pattern.

> Large scale variations in input costs and inability / delay of Government to synchronise
such changes in their policies for fertilizer industry.

» Government regulation. Though for betterment of farmers but many time cause of
anxiety.

> DPotential threat of new entrants which could adversely impact leading market position
in several products.

> Volatility in the prices of Raw material and variation in the foreign exchange rates may
affect business.
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SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

Detail of Segment wise performance is furnished separately in the Balance Sheet of the Company.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The demand for both Nitrogenous & Phosphatic fertilizers in India is increasing steadily, With the
domestic production almost stagnant and the demand increasing, the supply deficit of final as well
as raw material has to be met from imports.

To meet this challenge, the group has entered into an agreement with Jordan Phosphate Mines
Company (JPMC), Jordan (A government undertaking) to import substantial quantity of Raw
material to meet the growing demand and has also finalized supply arrangements with certain
local manufacturers of fertilizers, to augment total fertilizer availability in our marketing territory
through our own marketing channel.

Further, Company has started manufacturing of its rich value-added highly demanding products
DAP & NPK Complex fertilizer variants in various regions in India with installed capacity of
120000 MTPA. The Financial Year 2024 would be full-fledged year of functioning of this new
project.

RISK & CONCERN
Changes in Government policy, currency risk, fluctuation in input prices may have an impact on
Company’s profitability.

The Fertiliser industry is subject to Government regulations and dependent upon subsidy policies
of the Government of India. The changes in such policies and higher dependence on subsidy may
sometimes adversely affect the Company.

Possible non-availability of indigenous raw materials & fertilizers and their rising prices for non-
urea fertilizers are matters of concern. Considering the Company’s plans for higher imports.
Increase in operating costs, mainly finance costs on working capital etc. may adversely affect
profitability.

Our business is mostly dependent upon the growth of agriculture and Agri-products which are
subject to substantial risks faced by the Monsoon in India. Weather condition such as delayed
monsoon or less rainfall may affect our business. These are all factors which are beyond the control
of the private enterprise and would continue to be a challenge.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The company has in place an adequate internal control system, which is commensurate with the
size, scale and complexity of the company. The internal auditors independently evaluate the
adequacy of internal controls and concurrently audit the majority of the transactions in value
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terms. Independence of the audit compliance is ensured by the direct reporting of Internal Audit

Division and Internal Auditors to the Audit Committee of the Board.

During the period under review the Internal Financial Control were tested and no reportable

material weakness in the design or operation were observed.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
During the year under review, company has reported a turnover of Rs. 491.49 Crore as against of

Rs. 185.71 Crore growing by 164.65 % over last Financial Year and similarly Profit after tax at Rs.
57.11 Crore as against 20.24 crores in previous year was up by 186.61%.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
Sr. | Particulars of | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021 | change | Explanation for change in Ratios
No | Ratio in Ratios
%

1 | Debtors 8.82 4.58 | 92.57% Debtors’ turnover ratio increased

Turnover due to better management of
debtors.

2 | Inventory 414 3.07 | 34.85% due to  better  inventory
Turnover management.

3 | Interest 11.77 8.52 | 38.14% Improved, No major change
Coverage Ratio

4 | Current Ratio 1.51 1.50 | 0.66% No major change.

5 | Debt Equity 0.80 0.47 | 70.21% Debt-Equity Ratio increased due to
Ratio enhancement in working capital

limit to meet increased operations.

6 | Operating 18.05 17.43 | 3.56% No major change.
Profit Margin
(%)

7 | Net Profit 11.60 10.90 | 6.42% No major change.
Margin (%)

DETAILS PERTAINING TO RETURN ON NET-WORTH OF THE COMPANY

Sr. | Particulars of | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021 | change in | Explanation for change in

No | Ratio Ratios % | Return on Net Worth

1 | Return on Net 27.77 13.55 | 104.94% | Improved due to  better
Worth (%) performance
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HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

As a part of ongoing exercise of the restructuring and re-organisation of the Company’s business,
the Company undertakes periodic comprehensive reviews of its HR policies and amends the same
suitably from time to time, to meet the emerging business requirements. We have had cordial
relations with the staff throughout the year.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
There are certain statements in this report which the Company believes are forward looking. The
forward-looking statements stated in this report could significantly differ from the actual results
due to certain risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to economic developments,
Government actions, etc.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Date 30.05.2022 (Pankaj Ostwal) (Sourabh Gupta)
Place Bhilwara (Raj) Managing Director = Whole Time Director
&

Chief Financial Officer
DIN 02586806 DIN 07177647
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ANNEXURE IX
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

CSR activities at Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited is already in existence for the benefit of the
society. It is recognized that integrating social, environmental and ethical responsibilities into the
governance of businesses ensures the long-term success, competitiveness and sustainability.

Further, Corporate Social Responsibility makes a business sense as companies with effective CSR
brings improvement in social strata which ultimately comes back to the company through increased
demand of products. It also improves image as a socially responsible company.

The main objective of CSR policy is to make CSR a key business process for sustainable development
of the society. Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited will act as a good corporate citizen and aims
at supplementing the role of Government in enhancing the welfare measures of the society within
the framework of its policy.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on the website of the
Company http:/ /www.mbapl.com.in the ‘Investor Handbook” under ‘Investor Relation’.

2. Composition of CSR Committee-

S1. | Name of Director Designation /| Number of | Number of
No. Nature of meetings of CSR [ meetings of CSR
Directorship | Committee held | Committee

during the year attended  during

the year
1. Shri Arvind Kothari Chairman 2 2
2. Shri Paras Mal Surana Member 2 2
3. Shri Bheru Lal Ostwal Member 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: - http:/ /www.mbapl.com

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-

rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report): - Not Applicable
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set

off for the financial year, if any

(Rs. in lakhs)

SI. No. Financial Year Amount available for | Amount required to be
set-off from preceding | set- off for the financial
financial years (in Rs) | year, if any (in Rs)

1 2020-2021 0.17 -

2 2019-2020 - -

3 2018-2019 - -

TOTAL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): - 2229.07 lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): - 44.58 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: - Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): - 44.58 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total amount
spent for the

Amount Unspent (Rs. In Lakhs)

Total Amount transferred to

Amount transferred to any fund specified

under Schedule

financial Unspent CSR Account as per VII as per second proviso
Year. section 135(6) to section 135(5)
(Rs. in Lakhs) Amount Date of Name of the Amount | Date of
transfer Fund transfer
45.14 NA NA NA NA NA
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: - Not

Applicable
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
SI. | Name Item Local | Location | Pr Am | Amoun | Amount Mode Mode of
No.| of from the | area of the oje [ ount | t spent| transferre of Implement
the list of | (Yes/ | project. ct alloc | in the| dto Imple ation -
Project. | activities | No). du | ated ¢ | Unspent mentati | Through
in rat | for urrent CSR on - Im
Schedule ion | the financi | Account plementin
VII to the proj | al Year| for the | Direc g Agency
Act. ect (inRs.). | project as| t
(in per (Yes/
Rs.). Section No).
135(6) (in
Rs.).
CSR
St Reg
at |Distric Name| istra
e [t tion
nu
mbe
r.
1.
2. NA
3.
TOTAL
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl.| Name of the Project Item Loca Location of the Amount | Mode | Mode of
No fromthe |1 project. spent for | of implementation -
: list of area the imple | Through
activities | (Yes project menta | implementing
in / (Rs.in tionon | agency
schedule | No). Lakhs). Di
VII to the State. District. rec Name. | CSR
Act. t registra
Ye tion
s/ No.
No
1{COVID support - [promoting [Yes Madhya [Sagar 1.00 Yes - -
i}llgsﬁj}; nd of  samitizer, Woalth care Pradesh
food packets distribution [ANd
Disaster
Manageme
Int
2 [Ensure Environmental Environ Yes Madhya [Sagar 10.03 Yes - -
Sustainability - Flora [mental Pradesh
and Sustainabili
Fauna ty
3|COVID support - promoting [Yes Madhya [Sagar 2.00 No Red | InProcess
i}g&lg nd of  samitizer, W,oalth care Pradesh Crgss
food packets Society
distribution
4|Promoting Preventive promoting [Yes Madhya [Sagar 13.29  [Yes - -
Health ~ Care  and |health care Pradesh
Promoting education by
providing contributions
5[Promoting Preventive promoting [No New Delhi[New Delhi 500 |No Akhil | In Process
II;Iealtht. C(iare ; alf;d health care Bhartiya
romoting education .
providinggcontributionz and i Mahila
[promoting mandal
education
6 [Eradication of Poverty,[Eradicating [No Rajasthan [Bhilwara 13.02  [Yes - -
Food Distribution hunger,
poverty and
malnutritio
n
7[Temple Development &Protection [Yes Madhya [Sagar 0.80 Yes - -
Construction of national Pradesh
heritage, art
and culture
Total 45.14
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d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable

e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 45.14 Lakhs
g) Excess amount for set off, if any

MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED

SI. Particular Amount (Rs. in

No. Lakhs)

(i) }“32\&(()5 ercent of average net profit of the company as per section| 44 58

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 4514

(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.56

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or NIL
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) ?n;]ount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)- 0.56
iv

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SL Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
No. Financial transferred | spentinthe | specified under Schedule VII as | remaining
Year. toUnspent reporting | per section 135(6), if any. tobe spent
CSR Financial Name in
Account Year(in of the | Amount Date of succeeding
under Rs.). Fund (in Rs). transfer. financial
section 135 years. (in
(6) (in Rs.) Rs.)
1.
2. NA
3.

TOTAL
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding

financial year(s):

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
1%1(.) Project | Name of | Financial | Project Total | Amount | Cumulative | Status of
‘| ID. the Year duration | amoun | spent on | amount the
Project |in t the spentat the | project -
which allocat | projectin | end of
the ed for | the reporting gomplete
project the reporting | Financial /Ongoing.
was project | Financial | Year. (in Rs.)
commenc (in Year (in
ed Rs.). Rs).
N.A.
| TOTAL | | | | | |

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: -

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) - Not Applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset - Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset

is registered, their address etc.- Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and

location of the capital asset) - Not Applicable

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

11.
profit as per section 135(5): - Not Applicable
Sd/-
Date 30.05.2022 (Pankaj Ostwal)
Place Bhilwara (Raj) Managing
Director

DIN 02586806
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of MADHYA BHARAT AGRO
PRODUCTS LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31%, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows year ended on that date, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the
“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31%, 2022, the profit and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
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Context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
Concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.
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f)

g)

h)
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31%,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in
India.

iv)

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;



b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v) As stated in Note 13.2 to the standalone financial statements
a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company
during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

b) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which
is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The
amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

2) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For M/s. Rajneesh Kanther & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 021262C)
Sd/-
Rajneesh Kanther
Place: Bhilwara Proprietor

Date: May 30", 2022 (Membership No. 102162)

UDIN: 22102162AJXCHM9528
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MADHYA BHARAT AGRO
PRODUCTS LIMITED (the “Company”) as of March 315, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAIl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For M/s. Rajneesh Kanther & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 021262C)

Sd/-
Rajneesh Kanther
Place: Bhilwara Proprietor

Date: May 30", 2022 (Membership No. 102162)
UDIN: 22102162AJXCHM9528
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets :

a)

b)

c)

d)

a)

b)
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(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use
assets.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets.

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-
use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically
verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on which
building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we
report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under
Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of-use
assets) during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31st, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable
intervals and in the opinion of the auditor, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no material discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

As disclosed in note 17.1 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crores rupees in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis
of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the information and explanation given to



Vi.

Vii.

us and as represented by the person those charge with governance, we have not noticed any
material variations in the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or
financial institutions with the books of account of the Company.

As per the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books of accounts, the
company has not granted loans to any parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies act, 2013.Thus clause iii (a), iii (b), iii(c) are not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the
Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the Act,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31t, 2022 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on
March 315, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the statue Nature of Amount Period to which | Forum where dispute
dues (Rs. In Lakhs) the amount is pending
relates (Financial
Year)
Demand raised by Sales Tax 3.72 2012-13 Appeal made to
commercial tax Appellate Authority
department for Entry ,APP DC Sagar
tax for the F.Y.2012-13 Division
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viii.

Xi.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

b)

b)
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The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, term loans were applied
for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short term
basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.



Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XViii.

XiX.

c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year (and up to the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors. And hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities

131



falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

XX.

a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx) (a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of any
ongoing project accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable for the
year.

XXi. Since this report is in relation to standalone financial statements accordingly, reporting under clause

3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For M/s. Rajneesh Kanther & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 021262C)
Sd/-
Rajneesh Kanther
Place: Bhilwara Proprietor
Date: May 30", 2022 (Membership No. 102162)

UDIN: 22102162AJXCHM9528
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MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED

OSTWAL
5-0-21, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara (Raj.) India
Website: www.mbapl.com, Email: secretarial@mbapl.com; CIN: L24121RJ1997PLC029126
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31° March 2022
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Note No. | As at 31" March 2022 | As at 31* March 2021
I |ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 15306.47 8513.89
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 249.82 7535.05
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 183.95 135.65
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 51.69 4.95
Total Non Current Assets 15791.93 16189.54
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 6 15749.72 5307.54
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 7381.45 2729.55
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 1.09 18.27
(iif) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents as above (ii) 8A 822.90 14.72
(iii) Loans 9 15.50 8.21
(iv) Other Current Financial Assets 10 147.91 128.00
(c) Other current assets 11 3993.27 2045.28
Total Current Assets 28111.84 10251.57
Total Assets 43903.77 26441.11
IIJEQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 12 2190.67 2190.67
(b) Other Equity 13 18341.04 12745.34
Total Equity 20531.71 14936.01
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 3237.06 4135.59
(i) Lease Liabilities 15 10.72 10.93
(b) Provisions 21 21.67 15.46
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 16 1505.82 511.42
Total Non Current Liabilties 4775.27 4673.40
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 13129.45 2885.46
(ii) Trade Payables 18
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 28.42 89.42
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 3562.15 2082.15
(iii) Lease Liabilities 16 0.21 0.19
(iv) Other financial liabilities 19 394.59 448.01
(b) Other current liabilities 20 1467.01 1267.11
(c)Provisions 21 4.68 2.60
(d) Current tax liabilities (Net) 22 10.28 56.76
Total Current Liabilties 18596.79 6831.70
Total Equity and Liabilities 43903.77 26441.11
Significant Accounting Policies & the accompanying notes forming integral part of the " to 47"

Financial Statements

As per our report of even date.

For :M/s Rajneesh Kanther & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 021262C)

Sd/-

(Rajneesh Kanther)
Proprietor

Membership No. 102162
Place: Bhi{y ra

Date : 30" May ,2022

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Pankaj Ostwal)
Managing Director
DIN 02586806

Sd/-
(Pallavi Sukhwal)

Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS 43744

Sd/-

(Praveen Ostwal)
Director
DIN : 00412207

Sd/-
(Sourabh Gupta)

CFO
DIN 07177647




MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED

5-0-21, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara (Raj.) India

Website: www.mbapl.com , Email: secretarial@mbapl.com; CIN : L24121RJ1997PLC029126

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° March 2022

<>

OSTWAL

( Rs. in Lakhs)

For the Year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Note No. st st
31" March 2022 31" March 2021

REVENUE
Revenue From operations 23 49148.95 18571.39
Other income 24 25.85 15.38
Total Income 49174.80 18586.77
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 25 34360.34 9381.64
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress, and stock-in- trade 26 (5,675.58) (340.72)
Employee benefits expense 27 1775.37 1134.83
Finance costs 28 753.98 380.13
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 1812.96 937.20
Other expenses 30 8029.86 4236.13
Total expenses 41,056.93 15729.21
Profit Before Tax 8117.87 2857.56
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 1422.74 501.91
(2) Deferred tax 993.09 331.46
Total Tax Expense 2415.83 833.37
Profit After Tax 5702.04 2024.19
Other Comprehensive Income 31
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 4.50 (20.62)
Tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefits plans (1.31) 6.00
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period 3.19 (14.62)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 5705.23 2009.58
Earning Per equity Share of Face value Rs.10 each (Basic and Diluted in Rs.) 38 26.03 9.24
Significant Accounting Policies & the accompanying notes forming integral " to 47"

part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date.

For :M/s Rajneesh Kanther & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 021262C)

Sd/-

(Rajneesh Kanther)
Proprietor

Membership No. 102162
Place: Bhilwara

Date : 30" May ,2022
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Pankaj Ostwal)
Managing Director
DIN 02586806

Sd/-

(Pallavi Sukhwal)
Company Secretary

Membership No. ACS 43744

Sd/-

(Praveen Ostwal)
Director
DIN : 00412207

Sd/-
(Sourabh Gupta)

CFO
DIN 07177647




MADHYA BHARAT AGRO PRODUCTS LIMITED @.}
5-0-21, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara (Raj.) India OSTWAL
Website: www.mbapl.com , Email: secretarial@mbapl.com; CIN : L24121RJ1997PLC029126
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* March 2022
(Rs. in lakhs)
particulars For the Year ended 31%|For the year ended 31*
March 2022 March 2021

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net profit before tax 8,117.87 2,857.56
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortisation 1,812.96 937.20
Finance Cost 753.11 379.24
Interest Income (14.81) (5.82)
Loss / (Profit) on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.73 5.45
Interest paid on Lease Liabilities 0.87 0.89
Actuarial (Loss)/ Gains on Defined Benefit Obligations 4.50 (20.62)
Operating profit before working capital change 10,675.23 4,153.90
Adjustments for:

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payable 1,419.00 1,594.84
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liability 199.90 235.42
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (10,442.17) (2,009.45)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable (4,651.90) 47.60
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets (923.13) 202.65
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (1,947.99) (1,182.05)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets -Loans (7.29) (6.93)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liability (53.67) 405.02
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision 8.29 18.06
Net changes in working capital (16,398.96) (694.84)
Cash Generated from/(used in) operations (5,723.73) 3,459.06
Direct Taxes paid 1,469.23 483.18
Net cash from/(Used in) operating activities (A) (7,192.96) 2,975.88
B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (1,324.48) (5,626.09)
Sale proceed of Property, Plant & Equipment 3.45 20.84
Loss / (Profit) from sale of investment - -
Interest Income 14.81 5.82
Net cash from investing activities (B) (1,306.22) (5,599.43)
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds of long term borrowings 38.00 432.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (803.85) 1,306.66
Proceeds/(Repayment) of short term borrowings 10111.31 1,297.88
Repayment of Lease Liabilities (1.07) (1.07)
Finance Costs (Including Lease Liabilities Interest) (753.11) (379.24)
Dividend Paid (109.28) (109.44)
Net cash from financing activities (C) 8,482.00 2,546.79
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (17.18) (76.76)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the Start of the Year 18.27 95.03
Cash and cash equivalents as at the End of the Year 1.09 18.27
Net Cash Flow During The Year (17.18) (76.76)

As per our report of even date.

For :M/s Rajneesh Kanther & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 021262C)

Sd/-

(Rajneesh Kanther)
Proprietor

Membership No. 102162
Place: Bhilwara

Date : 30" May ,2022
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Pankaj Ostwal)
Managing Director
DIN 02586806

Sd/-

(Pallavi Sukhwal)
Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS 43744

Sd/-

(Praveen Ostwal)
Director
DIN : 00412207

Sd/-

(Sourabh Gupta)
CFO

DIN 07177647



Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited.
5-0-21, Basement,R.C.Vyas Colony,Bhilwara(Raj.)India
Website: www.mbapl.com Email: secretarial@mbapl.com; CIN : L24121RJ1997PLC029126
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March 2022

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

<G>

OSTWAL

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Balance as at April 1%, 2020

Changes in Equity

Share Capital due Changes in equity

share capital

Restated balance

Balance as at

t . . d . st st
0 prior perio as at April 17, 2020 during the year March 317, 2021
errors
2,190.67 - 2,190.67 - 2,190.67
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Changes in Equity . .
Bal Aoril 1. 2021 Share Capital due Restated balance C:anges |:e|quﬂy Balance as at
t Apri X . share capita
alance as at April 17, to prior period as at April 1%, 2021 e cap March 31%, 2022
during the year
errors
2,190.67 - 2,190.67 - 2,190.67
B. OTHER EQUITY
Other
Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
|
Particulars ficome Total
Remeasurement of
ities Premi Retai Earni
Securities Premium etained Earnings defined benefit plans
As on 01.04.2020
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year i.e 01.04.2020 1,686.52 9,156.00 2.59 10,845.11
Total Comprehensinve Income for the year - 2,024.19 (14.61) 2,009.58
Any other change 0.18 0.18
Dividend paid (Including Dividend Distribution Tax) - 109.53 109.53
Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31.03.2021 1,686.52 11,070.84 (12.02) 12,745.34
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 5,702.04 3.19 5,705.23
Dividends Paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax) - 109.53 - 109.53
Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e. 31.03.2022 1,686.52 16,663.35 (8.83) 18,341.04
As per our report of even date.
For :M/s Rajneesh Kanther & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 021262C) Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-

(Rajneesh Kanther)
Proprietor

Membership No. 102162
Place: Bhilwara

Date : 30" May ,2022
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(Pankaj Ostwal)
Managing Director
DIN 02586806

Sd/-
(Pallavi Sukhwal)

Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS 43744

(Praveen Ostwal)
Director
DIN : 00412207

Sd/-
(Sourabh Gupta)

CFO
DIN 07177647




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°%t, 2022

CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Madhya Bharat Agro Products Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited Company, incorporated and
domiciled in India having its registered office at 5-0-21, Basement, R.C. Vyas Colony, Bhilwara
(Rajasthan) 311001. The equity shares of the Company are listed on NSE Limited. The Company is
engaged in the manufacturing of fertilizers & chemicals having manufacturing facility located Unit | at
Rajoua Dist. Sagar (M.P.) & Unit Il at Sourai Industrial Area ,Village Sourai Teh. -Banda Distt. Sagar(M.P.)

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2022 are approved for issue by
the Company’s Board of Directors on 30" May 2022.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & KEY ACCOUNITNG ESTIMATES & JUDGEMENTS
1.1  Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:
A. Statement of compliance:
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto in use.
These Ind AS had been adopted w.e.f. 1% April, 2018 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
The Financial Statements includes Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2022, the Statement of Profit &
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows Statement, and Statement of Change in
Equity for the year ended 315 March, 2022 and significant accounting policy and other explanatory
information.

B. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs,
except as stated otherwise.

C. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis.
The following items are measured on each reporting date as under:
¢ Defined benefit plans - plan assets at fair value

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell as asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

D. Recent pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, as below.
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Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and Equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale
proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or
loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of
property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1%, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there
is no impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies
that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1%, 2022, although early adoption is
permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be
material.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.

The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex
and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been
disclosed in Note no. 1.2.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes
in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in
the notes to the standalone financial statements.

Use of Critical Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial years are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates or parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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Useful life of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate
of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life.

The useful life and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time
the asset is acquired. The life is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

Employee benefits

Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits are evaluated with reference to uncertain
events and based upon actuarial assumptions including among others discount rates, expected
rates of return on plan assets, expected rates of salary increases, estimated retirement dates,
mortality rates. The significant assumptions used to account for Employee benefits are described in
Note no M.

Revenue recognition

The Company assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance
obligations in the contract. Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the
contract. The Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance
obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more
distinct performance obligations. The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the
performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount
rate. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Loss allowance for receivables

The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experience
adjusted to reflect current and estimated future economic conditions. The Company considered
current and anticipated future economic conditions relating to industries the Company deals with
and the countries where it operates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also
considered credit reports and other related credit information for its customers to estimate the
probability of default in future and has taken into account estimates of possible effect from the
pandemic relating to COVID -19.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.
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Contingencies

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other
contingencies and obligations. Obligations relating to Project Executions is largely depends upon
performance of services by respective contractors. For contingent losses that are considered
probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial statements. Loss contingencies
that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent liabilities in the
financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the
financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognised until the contingency has been
resolved and amounts are received or receivable.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A.

Current and non-current classification
Any asset or liability is classified as current or non-current based on Company's normal- operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset/ Liability is classified as current, if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

e the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

e the asset is intended for sale or consumption;

e the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled within twelve months after the reporting
period;

e the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date;

¢ In the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets/ liabilities are classified as noncurrent.

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has
ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of product
and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured
reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of
property, plant and equipment and also to the costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part
of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of
the replaced part is de-recognised. Where an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
major components having different useful life’s, these components are accounted for as separate
items.

All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises of its purchase price including import duties and other non-refundable
purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
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its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, if
any. Any trade discount or rebate is deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost
of replacing a part of a plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Costs
in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and
when incurred.

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for the intended
use as at the balance sheet date. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as 'capital advances' under other
non-current assets.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial Statements upon
sale or retirement of the property, plant and equipment and the resultant gains or losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Property, plant and equipment to be disposed of are
reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost of disposal.

The Company had elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment appearing in the financial statements prepared as per accounting standards notified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Generally Accepted Accounting Standards "Previous GAAP") as the deemed cost of the
property, plant and equipment in the opening balance sheet under Ind As effective 1st April, 2018.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation method, estimated useful life’s and residual values are determined based on
technical parameters / assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

The estimated useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment are as follows:

Assets Useful life (Years)
Buildings 30 -60

Plant and Machinery 8-20

Office Equipment 5

Furniture & Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8-10

Computers 3

Energy Saving Equipment 15

Pollution Control Equipment 15

Electric Installations 10
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The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the period over which the Property, Plant and Equipment are likely to be used.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on pro rata basis using the straight-line
method based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 in
consideration with useful life of the assets as estimated by the management.

Depreciation on an item of property, plant and equipment sold, discarded, demolished or
scrapped, is provided up to the date on which such item of property, plant and equipment is sold,
discarded, demolished or scrapped.

The estimated useful life’s, residual values and methods of depreciation of property, plant &
equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from
previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and
adjusted prospectively, if any.

The Company had reassess the useful life of unit-1 plant & machinery and building whose useful
life was reduce due to wear & tear , company reassess the reduce life as per analysis of mechanical
chartered engineer also take certificate from them (refer note 3.4).

Impairment of assets
As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested
for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. The intangible assets with indefinite
life are tested for impairment each year.
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is determined:
a) Inthe case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use;
and
b) In the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified,

independent cash flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and

the value in use.
The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss is recognized for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Leases:

As a Lessee

The Company implemented a single accounting model as per Ind AS 116, requiring lessees to
recognize assets and liabilities for all leases excluding exceptions listed in the standard. The
Company elected to apply exemptions to short term leases or for leases for which the underlying
asset is of low value.
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Based on the accounting policy applied the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the contract for all leases conveying the right to control the
use of an identified assets for a period of time. The commencement date is the date on which a
lessor makes an underlying asset available for use by a lessee.

The right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises:

—The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,

— Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives,

— Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee,

— An estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets or restoring the site on which the assets are located.

After the commencement date the right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any re-measurement of the
lease liability. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the shorter of lease
term or useful of underlying assets.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. These include:

— fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable;

— Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

— Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

— The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and

— Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments exclude variable elements which are dependent on external factors. Variable
lease payments not included in the initial measurement of the lease liability are recognized directly
in the profit and loss. The lease payments are discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate or the rate implicit in the lease contract.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized
at fair value on initial recognition and adjusted for transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition or issues of financial assets and financial liabilities in case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss account.
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition is different
from its transaction price, the difference between the fair value and transaction price is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are initially
measured at transaction price.
Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at:
e amortized cost
e fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
e fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if both of the following

conditions are met:

e If is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the Company

measured using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any, and the

amortisation of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the statement of

profit and loss.

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the

following conditions are met:

e If it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and to sell these financial assets, and

e The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income.

A financial asset not classified as either amortised cost or at fair value through other

comprehensive income is carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of Financial Assets
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

¢ The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expire;

e The Company has transferred the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset or;

e Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is de-recognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retained substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial
asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
financial assets which are not fair valued through the statement of profit and loss.
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Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

ii) Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liability

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Interest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. Any difference between proceeds
(net of transaction cost) and the settlement amount of borrowing is recognised over the terms of
the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of Financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or has expired.

iii) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting
policies mentioned above.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
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measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability and the Company has access to the principal or the most advantageous market.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows: -
e Level 1 - quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
e Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
e Level 3 - inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note summarises accounting policy for fair
value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of the assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible.
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Current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed for Company, in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective
tax jurisdiction where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit under the IT Act.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in
case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction (other than business combination) that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets (including unused tax credits such as MAT credit) are generally recognized for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. However, in case of
temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
(other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,
deferred tax assets are not recognized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised based on the tax rates and tax laws in force. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to cover or settle the carrying
value of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in
India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against
future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT credit is recognized as deferred tax asset in the
balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic
benefit associated with the asset will be realized. Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is
recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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J. Inventories
Raw Materials, Packing Materials, Consumable Stores and Spares including Fuel and Finished goods
are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value as under:

(i) | Raw materials, Packing materials, Stores | At Cost on FIFO basis
and Spares including Fuel
(ii) ‘ Stock in trade and Finished Goods ‘ At Cost plus appropriate overheads

The cost of purchase comprises of the purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable by the Company from the taxing authorities), freight inward and other
expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition but net of trade discount, rebates, and other
similar items.

The cost of Inventories of finished goods comprises the cost of purchases, the cost of conversion
and the cost of packing materials.

The cost of conversion comprises of depreciation and repairs and maintenance of plant and
machineries, power and fuel, factory management and administration expenses and consumable
stores and spares.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated cost to make sale.

K. Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having
original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and
usage.

L. Foreign currency translation
The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are recorded in the
functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction.
Foreign currency denominated monetary items is restated at the closing exchange rates.
Non-monetary items are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Non-
monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.
Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss.
The forward exchange contracts are marked to market and gain/loss on such contracts are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss at the end of each reporting period.

M. Employee benefits
i) Short-term benefits:
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. The Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of
short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a
liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.
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ii) Post-employment benefits:
i Defined benefit plan

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation on Project Unit Credit Method made at the end of each financial year. The
scheme is maintained and administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India to which
the Company makes periodical contributions through its trustees.

Remeasurement actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur directly
in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement if
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

iii. Defined contribution plan
A Defined Contribution Plan is plan under which the Company makes contribution to
Employee's Provident Fund administrated by the Central Government. The Company's
contribution is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

iii) Other long-term employee benefits - Leave Salary
The liability towards leave salary which is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services is recognized
based on actuarial valuation carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and
post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has
not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and
will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company sets up a provision when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event and it will probably require an outflow of resources to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or where reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be
made. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/
independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect
the current management estimate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°%t, 2022

O. Revenue recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customer is recognized when the Company satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring the promised goods or services to a customer at a transaction price. The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer as per contract, excluding
amount of taxes collected on behalf of the government. The transaction price is adjusted of trade
discount, cash discount, volume rebate and other variable considerations as per the terms of
contract.

a. Sale of Goods
Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a point in time when the control on the goods
have been transferred to a customer i.e. when material is delivered to the customer or as per
shipping terms, as may be specified in the contract.

b. Government Subsidy
Subsidy has been recognized by the Company on the basis of the notification received from the
ministry of Chemicals and fertilizers from time to time.
c. Other Operating Revenue
i. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and the applicable interest rates.
ii. Claim lodged with insurance companies is recognized as income on acceptance by the
insurance Companies.
iii. Rental income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis.

P. Segment accounting
The Managing Directors monitor the operating results of the business Segments separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in
the financial statements.
The Operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products.
i.  Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/ allocable to the

Segment.

ii. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment result.

iii. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments are included
under unallocable expenditure.

iv. Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallowable income.

V. Segment result represent the profit before interest and tax earned by each segment without
allocation of central administrative costs.

Vi. Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Company
as a whole and not allocable to any segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°%t, 2022

The Company has disclosed Business Segments as its primary segments. Reporting segments have
been identified as Fertilizers and Chemicals, taking into accounts the nature of product, the
different risk and returns, the organizational structure and the internal reporting system.

The Company caters mainly to the need of domestic market. The direct export turnover is Nil
during the year. As such there are no reportable geographical segments.

Inter-Segment transfer pricing

Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the
basis of transfer price agreed between the segments. Such transfer prices are either determined to
yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated basis and are on an arm’s length basis in a manner
similar to transactions with third parties.

These transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Statement of cash flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash
Flows’, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income
or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company considers all highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the quarter & year ended as on 31.03.2022

<>

AsSTWAL
3. Property,Plant and Equipment
(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
As at 1% April 2021 Additions (Disposals) As at 31% March | As at 1% April 2021 |  for the period On disposals As at 31% March | Balance as at 31 | Balance as at 31%
2022 2022 March 2022 March 2021
A |Tangible Assets
Factory Building 3,113.06 1,240.62 - 4,353.68 695.08 144.56 - 839.64 3,514.04 2417.98
Office Building 163.46 78.19 - 241.65 25.56 3.67 - 29.23 212.42 137.90
Plant & Machinery 7,466.76 7,211.58 - 14,678.34 4,260.80 1,509.32 - 5,770.12 8,908.23 3205.96
Plant Electricals 577.02 - - 577.02 384.16 54.56 - 438.72 138.30 192.86
OE-Office Equipments 19.61 5.08 0.72 23.97 14.54 2.12 0.12 16.54 7.43 5.08
Tools & Spares 1.39 - - 1.39 1.30 - - 1.30 0.09 0.09
Furniture & Fixtures 33.97 N - 33.97 25.51 2.69 » 28.20 5.77 8.47
Vehicles 130.77 69.51 5.98 194.30 30.52 17.32 2.40 45.44 148.86 100.23
Quality Control Laboratory 11.75 - - 11.75 9.61 0.96 - 10.57 1.18 2.14
Computers 27.05 4.72 - 31.77 19.06 4.39 - 23.45 8.32 7.99
Gas Cylender 0.14 - - 0.14 0.10 0.01 - 0.11 0.03 0.03
B.|Assets under Finance Lease
Right of Use- Leasehold Land 2,655.37 - - 2,655.37 220.21 73.36 - 293.57 2,361.80 2,435.16
Total 14,200.35 8,609.70 6.70 22,803.35 5,686.45 1,812.96 2.52 7,496.89 15,306.47 8,513.89
C |Capital Work In Progress 7,535.04 1,245.18 8,530.40 249.82 249.82 7,535.05
Building 1,067.43 328.62 1,318.81 77.24 77.24 1067.43
Plant & Machinery 6,467.61 916.56 7,211.59 172.58 172.58 6467.62
Total this year 21,735.39 9,854.88 8,537.10 23,053.18 5,686.45 1,812.96 2.52 7,496.89 15,556.29 16,048.94
Particulars Gross Block Ac lated Depreciation Net Block
As at 1% April 2020 Additions (Disposals) As at 31 As at 1% April 2020 |  for the period On disposals As at 31 Balance as at 31*' | Balance as at 31
March,2021 March,2021 March 2021 March 2020
A |Tangible Assets
Factory Building 2879.95 233.12 - 3,113.07 601.69 93.40 - 695.09 2,417.98 2278.26
Office Building 163.47 0.00 - 163.47 22.96 2.59 - 25.55 137.91 140.51
Plant & Machinery 6603.26 900.90 37 7,466.77 3594.57 689.86 23.63 4,260.80 3,205.96 3008.69
Plant Electricals 571.39 5.64 - 577.03 330.02 54.15 - 384.17 192.86 241.37
OE-Office Equipments 17.83 1.78 - 19.61 13.05 1.47 - 14.52 5.09 4.78
Tools & Spares 1.39 0.00 - 1.39 1.27 0.02 - 1.29 0.09 0.12
Furniture & Fixtures 31.47 2.50 - 33.97 22.65 2.85 - 25.50 8.47 8.82
Vehicles 137.87 10.90 18 130.75 22.47 15.50 7.46 30.51 100.23 115.40
Quality Control Laboratory 11.75 0.00 - 11.75 8.55 1.06 - 9.61 2.14 3.20
Computers 21.56 7.57 2 27.05 16.23 2.93 0.10 19.06 7.99 5.33
Gas Cylender 0.14 0.00 - 0.14 0.10 0.01 - 0.11 0.03 0.04
B.|Assets under Finance Lease
Right of Use- Leasehold Land 2657.04 0.00 1.66 2,655.38 146.86 73.36 0.00 220.22 2,435.16 2,510.18
Total 13,097.12 1,162.41 59.15 14,200.38 4,780.42 937.20 31.19 5,686.43 8,513.89 8,316.70
C |Capital Work In Progress 3,071.37 5,619.32 1,155.64 7,535.05 - - - - 7,535.05 3071.37
Building 364.38 834.00 130.95 1,067.43 1,067.43 364.38
Plant & Machinery 2,706.99 4,785.32 1,024.69 6,467.62 6,467.62 2706.99
Total this year 16,168.48 6,781.73 1,214.79 21,735.42 4,780.42 937.20 31.19 5,686.43 16,048.94 11,388.06
Additional Note:
1 For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured as per I-GAAP less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of 1st April, 2018.
2 Refer Note 14 and 17 for details of assets pledged.
3 Leasehold land includes assets accquired as "Right to Use".
4 The Company had reassess the useful life of unit-1 plant & machinery and building whose useful life was reduce due to wear & tear, company reassess the reduce life as per analysis of mechanical chartered engineer also take certificate from them.
5 Company had started new DAP/NPK fertilizer plant during the year i.e. on 17" May 2021 (date of commencement of operation)
6 Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31%, 2022 and March 31%, 2021 is as follows:
(Rs. in lakhs)
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
A.|Projects in progress2
As at March 31%, 2022 249.82 - 249.82
As at March 31%, 2021 4,463.68 2136.13 31.4 903.84 7535.05
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4. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31" March 2022 [ Asat 31" March 2021

(Unsecured and considered good)

Deposit with Banks having maturity more than 12 months 3.30 -

Security Deposits* 180.65 135.65
Total 183.95 135.65
* Pledged with government authorities and others
5. OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31° March 2022 As at 31* March 2021

(Unsecured and considered Good)

Capital Advances 51.69 4.95
Total 51.69 4.95
6. INVENTORIES (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31% March 2022 | Asat 31* March 2021

(As taken ,valued & certified by the management)

a) Raw Materials 6,827.65 2,360.99

b) Finished Goods 8,266.59 2,591.01

c) Stores & Spares 601.44 301.34

d) Other Consumables 54.04 54.20
Total 15,749.72 5,307.54

6.1 All the above inventories have been valued as per the accounting policy (Refer Note No. 2. J)

6.2 The major components of inventory in case of raw material are Rock-Phosphate, Sulphuric Acid, Ammonia, Phosphoric Acid & HDPE Bags, Boron, Zinc Sulphate (Boron & Zinc Sulphate are fortified with SSP), Sulphur etc. and in case of
finished goods its includes Beneficiated Rock Phosphate(BRP), Single Super Phosphate(SSP), Granular Single Super Phosphate(GSSP),Di-ammonium Phosphate (DAP), Nitrogen Phosphorus and Potassium (NPK) ,Chemical Product like Phosphoric

Acid(PAP) & Sulphuric Acid & Oluem.

6.3 Inventories as above are hypothecated to secured short term borrowings (Refer Note No. 17.1)

7. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31% March 2022 | Asat31* March 2021
Trade receivables Unsecured,Considered Good 2,110.02 1,219.09
Subsidy receivables Unsecured ,Considered Good 5,271.43 1,510.46
Total 7,381.45 2,729.55
7.1 Above Trade receivables are hypothecated to secured short term borrowings (Refer Note No. 17.1)
Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months 6 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — Considered Good
As at March 31%, 2022 7,282.79 82.32 15.12 1.22 - 7,381.45
As at March 31%, 2021 2,555.43 105.25 67.91 0.96 - 2,729.55
Total Trade Receivables as at March 31%, 2022 7,282.79 82.32 15.12 1.22 - 7,381.45
Total Trade Receivables as at March 31%, 2021 2,555.43 105.25 67.91 0.96 - 2,729.55
8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31% March 2022 | Asat31* March 2021
Cash on Hand 0.47 0.47
Balanddwith bank in Current Accounts 0.62 17.80
Fixed Deposit with Bank - -
Total 1.09 18.27




8A. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31* March 2022

As at 31° March 2021

Earmarked Balances with Banks for Unclaimed & Unpaid Dividends 0.25 0.09
Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months 822.65 14.63
Total 822.90 14.72
8A.1 Fixed deposit more than 12 month maturity are disclosed under other financial assets (Note no.4)
9.  LOANS - CURRENT (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31* March 2022

As at 31% March 2021

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Loan to Employee 15.50 8.21
Total 15.50 8.21
10. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31* March 2022

As at 31% March 2021

(Unsecured and Considered Good)

Security Deposit 147.91 128.00
Total 147.91 128.00
11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31* March 2022 As at 31° March 2021
(Unsecured and Considered Good)
Prepaid expenses 59.28 30.75
Advances to suppliers 628.73 83.92
Material in transit 28.63 -
GST Credit Receivables 3,276.63 1,930.61
Total 3,993.27 2,045.28
12. Equity Share Capital (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31* March 2022

As at 31% March 2021

Authorized Share Capital
2,50,00,000( 31 March,2021 - 2,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-

each fully paid up 2,500.00 2,500.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up

2,19,06,735( 31 March 2021 - 2,19,06,735) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-

each fully paid up 2,190.67 2,190.67
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital 2,190.67 2,190.67

i). Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares

Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the
shareholders. There is no restriction on distribution of dividend. However, same is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particulars

As at 31* March 2022

As at 31% March 2021

As at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares Issued during the year
As at the end of the year

2,19,06,735.00

2,19,06,735.00

2,19,06,735.00

2,19,06,735.00

iii) Shares of the company held by holding company

out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

Name of Shareholder

As at 31* March 2022

As at 31% March 2021

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited, holding Company
(Holds 1,42,51,554 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

14251554

14251554
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iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company

Name of Shareholder

As at 31° March 2022

No. of Shares held

% of Holding

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited.
Suswani Textiles Pvt. Ltd.

14251554
1433135

65.05%
6.54%

Name of Shareholder

As at 31 March 2021

No. of Shares held

% of Holding

Ostwal Phoschem (India) Limited.
Suswani Textiles Pvt. Ltd.
Visualize Tradecom Pvt. Ltd.

14251554
1505340
1120372

65.05%
6.87%
5.11%

v) The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of
liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to

their shareholding.

vi) Shareholding of Promoters

Share hold by Promoters at the end of the year

As at 31° March 2022

Promoter's Name

No. of Shares

% of Total Shares

% Change during the year

1.Shri Praveen Ostwal

2.Shri Pankaj Ostwal

3.Smt. Ekta Jain

4.Pankaj Ostwal (HUF)

5.Shri Mahendra Kumar Ostwal

6.Smt. Nitu Jain

7.Praveen Ostwal HUF

8.Nirmala Realinfrastructure Private Limited
9.0stwal Phoschem (India) Limited

332700
201015
661840
57120
8500
5000
6000
804132
14251554

1.52
0.92
3.02
0.26
0.04
0.02
0.03
3.67
65.05

Share hold by Promoters at the end of the year

As at 31° March 2021

Promoter's Name

No. of Shares

% of Total Shares

% Change during the year

1.Shri Praveen Ostwal

2.Shri Pankaj Ostwal

3.Smt. Ekta Jain

4.Pankaj Ostwal (HUF)

5.Shri Mahendra Kumar Ostwal

6.Smt. Nitu Jain

7.Praveen Ostwal HUF

8.Nirmala Realinfrastructure Private Limited
9.0stwal Phoschem (India) Limited

332700
201015
661840
57120
8500
5000
6000
849800
14251554

1.52
0.92
3.02
0.26
0.04
0.02
0.03
3.88
65.05

13. Other Equity

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31" March 2022 | Asat 31™ March 2021
Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,686.52 1,686.52
Addition during the year -
Balance at the end of the year 1,686.52 1,686.52
Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 11,070.84 9,156.00
Add: Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year 5,702.04 2,024.19
Less: Appropriations
Transferred to General Reserve - -
Due to Reversal of Lease Assetes & Liabality - 0.18
Dividend On Equity Shares 109.53 109.53
Tax On Dividend
Balance at the end of the year 16,663.35 11,070.84
Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Balance at the beginning of the year (12.02) 2.59
Addition during the year 3.19 (14.61)
Balance at the end of the year (8.83) (12.02)

Total 18,341.04 12,745.34

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves / Other Equity

13.1 Securities Premium Reserve

Balance of Security premium reserve consist of premium on issue of share over its face value. The balance will be utilized for issue of fully paid bonus shares, buy-

back of its own share as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

13.2 Dividend
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company during the year.

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31% March 2022 | Asat 31% March 2021
Final Dividend for the year ended 31* March, 2021 (0.50 Rs. per share ) 109.53
Final Dividend for the year ended 31% March, 2020 (0.50 Rs. Per share) 109.53
Total 109.53 109.53
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14. BORROWINGS- NON CURRENT

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31" March 2022 | As at 31* March 2021
Secured
Term Loan From Banks
Rupee Loans 3,237.06 4,135.59
Total 3,237.06 4,135.59

a) In respect of Secured Term Loan

i) Nature of Security — The term loans from HDFC Bank by way of 1st charge in the form of mortgage of assets of the company's immovable properties at Banda Unit and Rajoua Unit Dist Sagar, (MP) owned by the

company.

ii) Terms of repayment — Term loans from HDFC Bank Ltd. & Axis Bank Ltd are repayable in monthly installments and having fixed interest rate @ 8.25% - 7.00% respectively.

(Rs. in lakhs)

No. of Instalments
outstanding as on

As at 31° March 2022

Name of Banks Date of Maturity 31.03.2022 Total Outstanding Current Maturities Net Long Term
Borrowings

HDFC Bank Ltd.& Axis Bank Car Loan 49 4171.91 934.85 3237.06
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 22.92 crore) @7.75% 07th June 2025 39 1180.25 337.49 842.76
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 30.00 crore) @7.75% 07th Feb 2027 59 2599.21 451.82 2147.39
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 4.32 crore) @8.25% 07th Aug 2024 29 356.13 138.84 217.29
Axis Bank Limited (Term loan of Rs. 38 Lakh) @7.00% 01st Dec 2026 57 36.32 6.70 29.62
Total 4,171.91 934.85 3,237.06

(Rs. in lakhs)

No. of Instalments As at 31° March 2021

outstanding as on

Name of Banks Date of Maturity Total Outstanding Current Maturities Net Long Term
31.03.2021 )
Borrowings
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 22.92 crore) 07th June 2025 51 1,492.65 312.40 1,180.25
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 30.00 crore) 07th Feb 2027 71 3,013.11 413.90 2,599.22
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Term Loan of Rs. 4.32 crore) 07th Aug 2024 41 432.00 75.87 356.13
Total 4,937.76 802.17 4,135.59
ili)Guarantors - Secured loans are guaranteed by personal guarantee of Sh.Pankaj Ostwal (Managing Director) and Sh.Mahendra Kumar Ostwal, Sh. Praveen Ostwal, Director.
15. LEASE LIABILITIES (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 | Asat 31 March 2021
Lease liability (Non current) 10.72 10.93
Lease liability (Current) 0.21 0.19
Total 10.93 11.12
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16. DEFERRED TAX LIABILTIES (NET)

<>

AsSTWAL

(Rs. in lakhs)

Deferred income tax reflect the net tax effects of temporary difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant component of the Company’s net deferred income tax are as follows:-

Provisions & .
Particulars Defined benefit obligation Propert\{, plant others loss MA.T credit Total
and equipment . entitlement
adjustment

Balance as at 1° April, 2020 1.80 993.74 (3.79) (805.77) 185.97
(Changed)/Credited:

- to Statement of profit and loss 0.61 (157.04) (6.60) 494.49 331.45

- to other comprehensive income (6.00) (6.00)

- to current tax liability
Balance as at 31°* March, 2021 (3.59) 836.70 (10.39) (311.29) 511.42
(Changed)/Credited:

- to Statement of profit and loss (0.86) 1885.95 (4.57) (887.44) 993.09

- to other comprehensive income 1.31 1.31

- to current tax liability
Balance as at 31° March, 2022 (3.14) 2722.64 (14.96) (1198.72) 1505.82
B. Income tax recognised in profit or loss (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31% March, For the year ended 31% March,

2022 2021
Current Tax 1422.74 501.91
Deferred Tax 993.09 331.46
Total income tax recoginsed for the year 2415.83 833.37
C. Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (Rs. in lakhs)
. For the year ended 31 March, For the year ended 31%* March,

Particulars 2022 2021
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 1.31 6.00
Total income tax recoginsed in other comprehensive income 1.31 6.00
D. The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss (before tax) 8117.87 2857.56
Applicable Tax Rate 29.12% 29.12%
Computed Tax Expense 2363.92 832.12
Tax effect of :
Items Considered Separately (2.29) (1.68)
The amount of eligible / ineligible expenditure 409.95 169.56
35AD Deduction (2243.26) 0.00
MAT Adjustment 894.41 (498.09)
Current Tax Provision (Net of MAT Credit) (A) 1422.74 501.91
Incremental Deferred Tax Liability on account of Tangible Assets 993.09 331.46
Deferred Tax Provision (B) 993.09 331.46
Tax Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (A+B) 2415.83 833.37
Effective Tax Rate 29.76% 29.16%
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17. BORROWINGS — CURRENT

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31° March 2022

As at 31" March 2021

a) Secured
Loans Repayable On Demand From Banks

Working Capital -HDFC Bank Ltd. 3,425.58 955.01
Working Capital -Axis Bank Ltd. 5,188.46
Credit Facility From Bank-Short Term ( SBLC Buyer Credit) 3,521.71

b) Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 934.85 802.17

c) Unsecured Loan:
from Promoter & Relatives
Unsecured Loan-From Inter Corporate - 1,128.28
Unsecured Loan From Directors 58.85

Total 13,129.45 2,885.46

17.1 for transactions with related party ,refer note no. 35.

i)Nature of Security — The advance shall be secured by 1st pari-pasu charge by HDFC Bank LTD & Axis Bank Ltd on Company's movable assets like Inventory's, Book Debts Etc. of Unit-I & Unit Il including movable plant

and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furnitur, fixture, vehicles, and all other movable assets present and future, intangible, goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.

ii)Terms of repayment — The bank loan for working capital is repayable on demand and having interest rate for HDFC Bank & Axis Bank @ 7.00% & 6.75% respectively as on 31/03/2022

iii)The bank loan for working capital is guaranteed by personal guarantee of Sh.Pankaj Ostwal(Managing Director) and Sh.Mahendra Kumar Ostwal,Sh.Praveen Ostwal

18. TRADE PAYABLES (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31* March 2022 As at 31° March 2021
Trade Payable - Due to Mircro and Small Enterprises 28.42 89.42
Trade payable Due to others 3,562.15 2,082.15

Total 3,590.57 2,171.57

Additional Note:-

18.1 The Government of India has promulgated an act namely “The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006” which comes into force with effect from October,2 2006. As per The Act, the Company
is required to identify the Micro & Small Enterprises & Pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period irrespective of the terms agreed with the enterprises. The Company has initiated the process of
identification of such suppliers. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been

identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31%, 2022 and March 31%, 2021:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

(1) MSME

As at 31° March 2022 28.42 - - - 28.42

As at 31% March 2021 89.42 - . - 89.42
(li) Others

As at 31% March 2022 3,560.19 1.79 - 0.17 3,562.15

As at 31% March 2021 2,077.98 4.17 - - 2,082.15
Total trade payables As at 31° March 2022 3,588.61 1.79 - 0.17 3,590.57
Total trade payables As at 31% March 2021 2,167.40 4.17 - - 2,171.57

18.2 The balgmge outstanding with sundry creditors either debit or credit are subject to confirmation and reconciliation

18.3 for transactions with related party, Refer Note No. 35




19. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31" March 2022

As at 31" March 2021

Unpaid Dividends # 0.25 0.09
Liability Towards Staff & Workers 115.09 96.24
Security Deposits from Dealers 78.00 42.25
Liability for Expenses 44.60 36.21
Trade Payable (Sundry Creditors) for capital goods 156.65 273.22
Total 394.59 448.01
# There is no overdue amount to be credited to investor education & protection fund.
20. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31° March 2022 | As at 31* March 2021
Statutory dues 43.20 47.25
Advance from customers 1,423.81 1,219.86
Total 1,467.01 1,267.11
21. PROVISIONS (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31" March 2022

As at 31" March 2021

For employee benefits-

Leave Encashment - Non Current 21.67 15.46

Leave Encashment - Current 4.68 2.60
Total 26.35 18.06
22. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31% March 2022 | As at 31% March 2021

Provision for taxation (Net of advance tax) 10.28 56.76
Total 10.28 56.76
23. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Rs. in lakhs)

For the Year ended 31

For the year ended 31"

Particulars
March 2022 March 2021
a) Sale of Products 28,346.16 13,110.24
b) Government Subsidies 20,802.79 5,461.15
Total 49,148.95 18,571.39
24. OTHER INCOME (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended 31% | For the year ended 31*
March 2022 March 2021
Interest on Govt. deposit 14.81 5.82
Net Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency Fluctuation - 4.34
Profit on sale of Property ,Plant ,Equipment(Net) - 2.43
Miscellaneous balance W/off 1.79 2.60
Rent Income 0.35 -
Others 8.90 0.19
Total 25.85 15.38
25. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended 31% | For the year ended 31*
March 2022 March 2021
Opening Stock 2,415.19 789.50
Add: Purchases 38,826.84 11,007.33
Less: Closing Stock 6,881.69 2,415.19
Total 34,360.34 9,381.64
26. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended 31% | For the year ended 31*
March 2022 March 2021
Stock at the beginning of the year (A) 2,591.01 2,250.29
Stock at,the end of the year (B) 8,266.59 2,591.01
(Increase)/Decrease in stocks (B-A) (5,675.58) (340.72)




27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

For the Year ended 31%

For the year ended 31™

March 2022 March 2021
Salaries, Bonus and allowances 1,694.46 1,083.11
Contribution to Provident Fund & ESI 38.69 26.39
Gratuity Fund contribution 14.07 6.65
Staff welfare expenses 28.15 18.68
Total 1,775.37 1,134.83
28. FINANCE COST (Rs. in lakhs)

For the Year ended 31%

For the year ended 31™

Particulars
March 2022 March 2021
Term Loan Interest 296.36 269.49
Working Capital Interest 162.42 58.26
Interest on lease liabilities 0.87 0.89
Interest other than bank & lease interest 197.33 41.89
Bank Charges 97.00 9.60
Total 753.98 380.13
29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE (Rs. in lakhs)

For the Year ended 31%

For the year ended 31™

Particulars
March 2022 March 2021
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 1,739.60 863.84
Depreciation on Right of Use Assets 73.36 73.36
Total 1,812.96 937.20
30. OTHER EXPENSES (Rs. in lakhs)

For the Year ended 31%

For the year ended 31"

Particulars
March 2022 March 2021
Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores & Spares parts 2,011.80 755.11
Power & Fuel 1,032.03 641.81
Repairs & Maintenance to Plant & Machinery 131.63 32.35
Other manufacturing expenses 698.09 331.52
Sub Total 3,873.55 1,760.79
Administration Expenses
Repairs to Building 67.71 3.85
Insurance 59.07 34.99
Auditors' Remuneration :
Statutory Audit Fess 1.50 1.50
CSR Expenses 45.14 30.72
Travelling Expenses 73.27 51.94
Vehical Runnig & Maintance Expenses 29.15 7.09
Consultancy Charges 21.33 24.37
Office Expense 79.10 41.29
Miscellaneous Expenditure 107.11 84.08
Sub Total 483.38 279.83
Selling & Distribution Expenses
Freight & Transport 3,516.35 2,075.61
Advertisement & Business Promotion Expenses 8.96 5.70
Godown Rent 33.77 26.14
Discount Allowed 113.85 88.06
Sub Total 3,672.93 2,195.51
Grand Total 8,029.86 4,236.13
31. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Rs. in lakhs)

For the Year ended 31%

For the year ended 31"

Particulars
March 2022 March 2021
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans 4.50 (20.62)
Tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefits plans (1.31) 6.00
Total160 3.19 (14.62)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31°%t, 2022

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT
I.  The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 31° March 2022 As at 31° March 2021
Particulars ;
FVTPL | FVTOCI | Amortizedcost | FVTPL | FvTOCI Am:;:'tzed
Financial Assets
Other Non-Current Financial
Assets - - 183.95 - - 135.65
Trade Receivables - - 7381.45 - - 2729.55
Cash and Cash equivalents - - 823.99 - - 32.99
Loans - - 15.50 - - 8.21
Other Current Financial Assets - - 147.91 - - 128.00
Total Financial Assets - - 8552.80 - - 3034.40
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 3237.06 - - 4135.59
Lease Liability - - 10.93 - - 11.12
Short Terms Borrowings - - 13129.45 - - 2885.46
Trade Payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small
enterprises - - 28.42 - - 89.42
(B) Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small
enterprises - - 3562.15 - - 2082.15
Other Current Financial
Liabilities - - 394.59 - - 448.01
Total Financial Liabilities - - 20362.60 - - 9651.75

1. Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk;

- liquidity risk; and

- Market risk

i Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The board of directors has established the processes to ensure
that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of property defined framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
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management policies and systems are reviewed by the board annually to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Company’s Audit Committee oversees compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by
the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of
which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. The Company is exposed to credit risk for trade receivables and financial
guarantees for dealers, derivative financial instruments and other financial assets.

The Company assess the counter party before entering into transactions and wherever necessary supplies
are made against advance payment. The Company on continuous basis monitor the credit limit of the
counter parties to mitigate or minimise the credit risk.

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure:

Trade and other receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its
customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The Company Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed
individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and
conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes market check, industry feedback, past financials
and external ratings, if they are available, and in some cases bank references.

Based on the credit aging of individual customer, the management considers that no provision on such
receivables has been recognised as on the reporting date.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position on the basis of expected
cash flows. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of surplus funds, bank loans and inter corporate loans.
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Exposure to liquidity risk
a) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Carrying Amount Contractual cash flows
Particulars As at 31° o _ More
March Total W\'(t:;: 1 ia!:s than 5
2022 y years
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3237.06 3237.06 - 3237.06 -
Lease Liability 10.93 10.93 - - 10.93
Short Terms Borrowings 13129.45 13129.45 13129.45 - -
Trade Payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises 28.42 28.42 28.42 - -
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3562.15 3562.15 3560.19 1.96 -
Other Current Financial Liabilities 394.59 394.59 394.59 - -
Total Financial Liabilities 20362.60 20362.60 17112.65 3239.02 10.93
Carrying Amount Contractual cash flows
Particulars As at 31° o _ More
March Total W:;::: 1 tafs than 5
2021 y years
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 4135.59 4135.59 - 4135.59 -
Lease Liability 11.12 11.12 - - 11.12
Short Terms Borrowings 2885.46 2885.46 2885.46 - -
Trade Payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises 89.42 89.42 89.42 - -
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2082.15 2082.15 2082.15 - -
Other Current Financial Liabilities 448.01 448.01 448.01 - -
Total Financial Liabilities 9651.75 9651.75 5505.04 4135.59 11.12

iv. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
commodity prices which will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
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Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in
foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchanges rates relates primarily to import of raw materials. When a
derivative is entered for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure.

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company
follows established risk management policies and standard operating procedures.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company's short-term borrowing. The Company constantly monitors
the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and
financing cost.

The exposure of the Company’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk based on liabilities as at reporting

date is as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Impact on profit before tax
2021-22 2020.21
Increase in interest rate by 100 basis points (61.44) (42.29)
Decrease in interest rate by 100 basis points 61.44 42.29

Commodity price risk

Commodity price risk for the Company is mainly related to fluctuations of raw materials prices linked to
various external factors, which can affect the production cost of the Company. Company actively manages
inventory and in many cases sale prices are linked to major raw material prices. To manage this risk, the
Company enters into long-term supply agreement for Raw Material, identifying new sources etc.
Additionally, processes and policies related to such risks are reviewed and managed by senior
management on continuous basis.

33. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s
capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimise returns to shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s
judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor,
creditors and market confidence. The management and the Board of Directors monitors the return on
capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company may take appropriate steps in order
to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing Net Debt from the
Equity. The Company includes within Net Debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and short-
term deposits (including other bank balance) and under Equity, the Equity Share Capital plus other Equity
(excluding Preference Share Capital) is considered:
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Gross Debt 16366.51 7021.05
Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents 823.99 32.99
Net Debt (A) 15542.52 6988.06
Total Equity (B) 20531.71 14936.01
Gearing Ratio (A/B) 0.76 0.47

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:
1. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

Particulars 2021-22 (in lakhs) | 2020-21 (in lakhs)

3.72 3.72
a. Demand raised by commercial tax department for

Entry tax for the F.Y.2012-13

35. DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO IND AS 24 “RELATED PARTY
DISCLOSURES”
A. Details of related parties

Parent Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd.
Key Managerial Personnel Shri Pankaj Ostwal (Managing Director)
Shri Sourabh Gupta (Whole Time Director & Chief Financial
Officer)
Ms. Pallavi Sukhwal (Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)
Non-Executive Director/ Shri Mahendra Kumar Ostwal
Independent Director Shri Praveen Ostwal

Shri Bheru Lal Ostwal
Shri Arvind Kothari
Shri Paras mal Surana
Smt. Shruti babel

Where persons mentioned in | Krishana Phoschem Ltd.

(b) exercise significant influence | Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd.

Nirmala Realinfrastructure Private Limited
Seasons International Private Limited

Shri Ganpati Fertilizers limited

Relatives of Key Managerial | Mrs. Nitu Ostwal
Personnel (KMP) Mrs. Ekta Jain

Other Related Parties M.K. Ostwal HUF (Karta is director)
Pankaj Ostwal HUF (Karta is director)
Praveen Ostwal HUF (Karta is director)
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B. Transactions with the related parties

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No. Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
1. Purchase of goods
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd. 2394.83 2268.28
Krishana Phoschem Ltd. 7472.62 1538.50
Seasons International Private Limited 347.51 -
Shri Ganpati fertilizers Ltd. - 6.39
2. Sale of goods
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd. 992.68 121.63
Krishana Phoschem Ltd. 3105.12 755.25
Shri Ganpati Fertilizers Ltd 961.20 -
3. Rent paid
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd. 0.12 0.12
4. Interest paid to
Krishana Phoschem Ltd. 95.14 30.57
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd. 42.64 -
Seasons International Private Limited 0.77 -
5. Insurance paid for
(i) Key Managerial Personnel
Shri Pankaj Ostwal 1.33 1.33
6. Compensation paid to Key Managerial Personnel:
Remuneration
(1) Short-term employment benefits / Salary
(i) Key Managerial Personnel
Shri Pankaj Ostwal 144.02 51.02
Shri Sourabh Gupta 10.67 8.55
Ms. Pallvi Sukhwal 3.76 3.35
(2) Commission
Shri Pankaj Ostwal - 47.00
7. Dividend Paid
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd. 71.26 71.26
Seasons Agro Chem india Private Limited 0.00 0.00
Nirmala realinfrastructure Private Limited 4.25 4.50
Shri Praveen Ostwal 1.66 1.66
Shri Pankaj Ostwal 1.01 1.01
Shri Mahendra Kumar Ostwal 0.04 0.04
Shri Bheru lal Ostwal 0.25 0.27
Shri Arvind Kothari 0.06 0.06
Mrs. Nitu Ostwal 0.03 0.03
Mrs. Ekta jain 3.31 3.31
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Pankaj ostwal (karta of pankaj Ostwal HUF) 0.29 0.29
Praveen Ostwal (Karta of praveen Ostwal HUF) 0.03 0.03
8. Transaction with Non- executive Director:
Remuneration/Commission
Shri Mahendra Kumar Ostwal 0.00 18.00
9. Loan Taken From :
Krishana Phoschem Ltd. 605.00 1100
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd. 3443.00 -
Seasons International Private Limited 150.00 -
10. Repayment against loan received
Krishana Phoschem Ltd. 1733.28 -
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd. 3443.00 -
Seasons International Private Limited 150.00
All related party contracts / arrangements have been entered on arms' length basis.
C. Amount due to/from related parties:
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Sr. No. Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
OUTSTANDING AT THE YEAR END
1 Trade Payable
Ostwal Phoschem (India) Ltd. - 287.80
Krishana Phoschem Ltd. 1820.05 624.99
Seasons International Private Limited 184.79 -
2 Loan taken
Shri Pankaj Ostwal 58.85
Krishana Phoschem Ltd. - 1128.28
Compensation payable to Key Managerial Personnel as on
3 31.03.2022 & 31.03.2021
Shri Pankaj Ostwal 13.85 13.85
Shri Sourabh Gupta 0.67 0.51
4 Compensation payable to Non-Executive Director as on 31.03.22 &21
Shri Mahendra Kumar Ostwal - 11.50
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36. SEGMENT REPORTING

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Business Segments
e - Total
Particulars Fertilizer Chemicals
Current | Previous | Current | Previous | Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year

Segment Revenue

Turnover 45,892.15 | 17255.24 | 3,256.80 | 1316.15 | 49,148.95 | 18571.39
Segment Result

Segment Profit 6,750.94 | 3056.28 | 2095.06 | 166.03 8,846.00 3222.31

Unallocated Finance charges 753.98 380.13

Unallocated expenses - -

Unallocated Income 25.85 15.38

Profit before tax 8,117.87 2857.56

Income tax (net) 2,415.83 833.37

Profit after tax 5,702.04 2024.19
Other Information

Segment assets 35,107.85 | 24337.42 | 8,795.92 | 2103.69 | 43,903.77 | 26441.11

Unallocated other assets

Total assets 35,107.85 | 24337.42 | 8,795.92 | 2103.69 | 43,903.77 | 26441.11

Segment liabilities 6863.54 | 8723.72 | 1862.97 | 129.91 8726.51 8853.63

Unallocated other liabilities 14645.55 2651.47

Total liabilities 6863.54 | 8723.72 | 1862.97 | 129.91 | 23372.06 | 11505.10

Capital Expenditure 3,538.17 | 1162.41 | 5,071.53 - 8,609.70 1162.41

Depreciation 1,062.07 | 653.71 750.89 | 283.49 1,812.96 937.20

37.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITES (CSR)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2022 | As at 31.03.2021
Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 44.58 30.55
Amount of expenditure incurred 45.14 30.72

Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfall

Reason for shortfall

Nature of CSR activities

Eradication of hunger and
malnutrition, Promoting gender
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equality, empowering women,
promoting education, healthcare,
environment sustainability

Details of related party transactions, e.g. Contribution to a 1.50
trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR
expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard(1)

Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred NA NA
by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in
the provision during the year shall be shown separately.

(1) Represents contribution to Nirmala Devi Seva Santhan a controlled trust to support the social activity.
38. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss which are
included under Contribution to Provident and other funds;

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31t March 2022 31t March 2021
Employers Contribution to Provident 38.69 26.39
i) | Fund

(b) Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity

The Company makes payment to vested employees as per provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
The provision of Gratuity Liability as on the Balance Sheet date is done on actuarial valuation basis for
qualifying employees, however the same is not funded to any trust or scheme. The present value of the
Defined Benefits obligation and the related current service cost is measured using the Projected Unit
Credit Actuarial Method at the end of Balance Sheet date by the Actuary.

Leave Encashment

The Company provides benefit of leave encashment to its employees as per defined rules. The
provision for liability for leave encashment as on date of Balance Sheet is recognised on the basis of
Actuarial certificate.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31°t March 2022 31t March 2021
Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations :- Gratuity | Earned | Gratuity | Earned
A) Leave Leave
a) Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year | 62.82 18.06 33.17 5.03
b) Interest Cost 3.89 0.97 2.40 0.32
c) Current Service Cost 13.00 13.55 6.63 4.87
d) Benefits paid (2.46) (5.46) 0.00 (0.68)
e) Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obligation (4.12) (0.75) 20.62 8.52
Present value of obligation at the end of year 73.14 26.36 62.82 18.06
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Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31t March 2022 31t March 2021
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the year :- Gratuity | Earned | Gratuity | Earned
B) Leave Leave
a) Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 50.48 0.00 39.34 0.00
b) Adjustment to Opening Fair Value of Plan Asset 0.07 0.00 0.00 0.00
c) Expected Return on Plan Assets 3.45 0.00 3.14 0.00
d) Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Assets 0.39 0.00 0.00 0.00
e) Employer's contribution 10.43 5.46 8.00 0.68
f) Benefits Paid (2.46) (5.46) 0.00 (0.68)
Fair Value of the plan assets at the end of the year 62.36 0.00 50.48 0.00
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Reconciliation of Present value of Defined Benefit Gratuity | Earned | Gratuity | Earned
C) | Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets Leave Leave
a) Present value of defined benefit obligation at end of 73.14 26.36 62.82 18.06
the year
b) Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 62.36 0.00 50.48 0.00
Funded status Surplus/(Deficit) (10.78) | (26.36) | (12.34) | (18.06)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss | Gratuity | Earned | Gratuity | Earned
D) Leave Leave
a) Current Service Cost 13.00 13.55 6.63 4.87
b) Net Interest Cost 0.45 0.97 (0.74) 0.32
b) Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 0.00 (0.75) 20.62 8.52
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 13.45 13.77 26.51 13.71
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31°* March 2022 31 March 2021
E) | Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Gratuity | Earned | Gratuity | Earned
Income (OCl) Leave Leave
a) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in 0.00 0.00 (4.97) 0.00
demographic assumption
b) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial (5.57) 0.00 10.43 0.00
assumption
c) Actuarial (gain)/loss arising on account of experience 1.46 0.00 15.15 0.00
changes
d) (Gain)/ Loss on plan assets less interest on plan assets (0.39) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Other (4.50) 0.00 20.62 0.00
Comprehensive Income
F)
For the year ended For the year ended
Investment details - Plan assets:- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
LIC- Administrator of the plan fund 62.36 50.48
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G) For the year ended For the year ended
The assumptions used in Actuarial Valuation:- 31 March 2022 31t March 2021
1. Financial Assumptions used in determining Earned Earned
the Defined Benefit Obligation Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
A) Discount rate (per annum) 7.10% 7.10% 6.32% 6.32%
B) Salary escalation rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
2. Demographic Assumptions used to determine
the Defined Benefit Obligation
A) Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years
B) Mortality Table IALM (2012-2014) IALM (2012-2014)
C) Employee Turnover/Attrition Rate 5.00% 5.00%

H) | Sensitivity Analysis:- For the year ended 31° March 2022
Gratuity Earned Leave
Increase Decrease | Increase | Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 66.99 80.42 24.21 28.92
Expected rate of future salary increase (1%
movement) 80.17 67.09 28.83 24.25
1) | Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation:- For the year ended 31t March 2022
Gratuity Earned Leave
Within 1 Year 9.58 4.68
1-5 Years 24.04 8.94
Beyond 5 Years but up to 10 Years 21.52 6.68
1. The Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period
is 9.23 Years.
2. The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on

defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method.

J) Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such
Company is exposed to various risks as follows —

e Salary Increases: - Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase
rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liability.

e Investment Risk: - If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on
assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

e Discount Rate: - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s
liability.

e Mortality & disability: - Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in
the valuation can impact the liabilities.

e Withdrawals: - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change
of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s liability.
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39. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Net Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 5,702.04 2,024.19
i) | attributable to Equity Shareholders X In Lakhs
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as 2,19,06,735 2,19,06,735
ii) | denominator for calculating EPS
iii) | Basic and Diluted Earning per Share () 26.03 9.24
iv) | Face Value per Equity Share () 10 10

40. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health due to pandemic COVID-19:
The Company has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these standalone
financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption,
recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets and impact on revenue recognition owing to changes
in cost budgets of fixed price contracts. The Company has carried out this assessment based on available
internal and external sources of information up to the date of approval of these standalone financial statements
and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these financial statements and expects to recover
the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the standalone financial statements may differ
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements owing to the nature and

duration of COVID-19.

41. MSME Disclosure

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Disclosure required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the Act) are given as

follows :

Particulars

As at March 31%, 2022

As at March 31%, 2021

Principal amount due

28.42

89.42

Interest due on above

Interest paid during the period beyond the appointed day

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment without adding the interest specified under
the Act.

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end
of the period

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
as above are actually paid to small enterprises for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Sec.23 of
the Act

Note: The above information and that given in Note No. 18 ' Trade Payables' regarding Micro and Small Enterprises
has been determined on the basis of information available with the Company and has been relied upon by the

auditors.
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42. Additional Regulatory Information:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.
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The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the Company) disclosed in the
financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the
current or previous year.

No loans are outstanding to the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally
or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly
returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks are in agreement with the
books of accounts.

The Company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to
237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company

shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
year.

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for
which it was obtained.
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XVi. Ratios:

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31%, 2022 and March 31%, 2021

st st
Particulars Numerator Denominator As at 31 Asat3l Deviation
March 2022 | March 2021
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liability 151 150 0.66%
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debts (1) Shareholders fund 0.80 0.47 70.21%
(c) Debt Service Earnings available Debt Service .
Coverage Ratio for debt service (2) 7.10 6.45 10.08%
. . Average
d) Ret Equit Net Profits aft
(d) Return on Equity et ot ater Shareholder’s 32.15% 15.70% 104.78%
Ratio taxes .
Equity
(e) Inventory turnover COGS A I ;
ratio, Verage Inventory 1 4.14 3.07 34.85%
(f) Trade Receivables Revenue Average Trade
turnover ratio, Receivable 8.82 4.58 92.58%
(g) Trade payables Average Trade
turnover ratio, Purchases Payables 11.68 4.20 178.10%
(h) Net capital turnover ) .
ratio, Revenue Working Capital 517 543 (4.79%)
(i) Net profit ratio, Net Profit Revenue 11.60% 10.90% 6.42%
(j) Return on Capital Earning before Capital Employed
employed, interest and taxes (3) 37.31% 18.03% 106.93%

1). Total Debts represents

borrowing ,lease liability & SBLC

long term debts & Short Term Debts including current maturities of long term

2). Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed

assets etc.

3). Tangible net worth + deferred tax liabilities + Lease Liabilities + Long term debts including current maturities.

Explanation for variances exceeding 25%:

a). Debt-Equity Ratio increased due to enhancement in working capital limit to meet increased operation.

b). Inventory Turnover Ratio increased due better inventory management.

c). Trade Receivable turnover ratio increased due to better management of debtors.
d). Trade payables turnover ratio increased due to reduction in credit purchase with availability of bank fund.

e). Return on equity & Return on capital employed increased due to better performance of company.
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43, Details of Production & Sales:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

sulphur bentonite Etc.

As at 315 March 2022 As at 315t March 2021
S. No. Products
Qty(MT) Value Qty(MT) Value
i) Production

Beneficiated Rock Phosphate 81,522.32 80,899.82
Phosphate Rich Organic Manure

2 A 18,745.
(PROM) & Potash 9,586.15 8,745.00
Single Super Phosphate-(Powder+ 1.84,967.35 173.461
Granular)
Sulphuric Acid , Oleum & other 88 576.28 41,511.05
products
Di-ammonium Phosphate (DAP) 3,340.620 -
Nitrogen, phosphorus and potassium 34,899.99 i
(NPK)
Phosphoric Acid 9,072.06 -

i) Sales

Beneficiated Rock Phosphate 0 0.00 1,073.80 59.06
Phosphate Rich Organic Manure

32,293.25 3029.01 16,546.55 1426.27
(PROM) & Potash ’ ’
Single Super Phosphate-(Powder+ 1,78,528.15 | 25,674.25 | 1,80,688.75 | 15,563.72
Granular)
Sulphuric Acid, Oleum & other 23,404.14 | 1,816.20 | 13,400.97 | 741.32
products
Di-ammonium Phosphate (DAP) 2,426.50 1,342.62 - -
Nitrogen, phosphorus and potassium 29300.95 | 11,406.75 i i
(NPK)
Phosphoric Acid 73.504 74.19 - -
Other sale include trading sale,
casma, phospho gypsum, doctorG, 5,805.93 781.02

44, APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 30" May, 2022.

The Board of

Directors have recommended dividend of X 0.50 per fully paid up equity share of X 10/- each, aggregating X
109.53 Lacs for the financial year 2021-22, which is based on relevant share capital as on 31t March, 2022. The
actual dividend amount will be dependent on the relevant share capital outstanding as on the record date / book

closure.

45. In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets and non-current investments, have a realisable value
in the ordinary course of business which is not significantly differ from the amount at which it is stated.
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46. The new Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) has been enacted, which would impact the contributions by the
Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to
be notified. The Ministry of Labour and Employment (the Ministry) has released draft rules for the Code on
November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stake holders which are under active consideration by the
Ministry. The Company will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in

the period in which the Code becomes effective and the related rules are published.

47. Previous year’s figures have been reclassified, wherever necessary, to confirm current year’s presentation.

As per our report of even date
For M/s Rajneesh Kanther & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 021262C)

Sd/-
(Rajneesh Kanther)
Proprietor
Membership No.102162
Place: Bhilwara
Date: 30*" May 2022
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Sd/- Sd/-
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